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CER 7. Pre-Award Evaluation Data Form

NOTE: This form is to be completed and included in the Qualification Package. Attach additional
pages if required.

PSTA
RFP 21-980369

Name of firm: Proterra Operating Company, Inc.

Address: 1815 Rollins Rd. Burlingame, CA 94010
o Individual o Partnership X Corporation o Joint Venture

Date organized: June 2, 2010
State in which incorporated: Delaware

PO DN =

Jochen Gotz- Board Member
Jeannine Sargent - Board Member
Constance Skidmore - Board Member
Mike Smith - Board Member

Names of officers or partners:

Jack Allen - Chairman & CEO

Ryan Popple - Co-Founder & Executive Director
Jake Erhard - Board Member

Joan Robinson-Berry - Board Member

Brook Porter - Board Member

PooTO O
T o ™

6. How long has your firm been in business under its present name? June 14, 2021

7. Attach as SCHEDULE ONE a list of similar current contracts that demonstrates your available capacity,
including the quantity and type of bus, name of contracting party, percentage completed and expected completion
date.

8. Attach as SCHEDULE TWO a list of at least three similar contracts that demonstrates your technical
proficiency, each with the name of the contracting party and number and they type of buses completed within the
last five years.

9. Have you been terminated or defaulted, in the past five years, on any Contract you were awarded?
o Yes X No
If yes, then attach as SCHEDULE THREE the full particulars regarding each occurrence.

10. Attach as SCHEDULE FOUR Proposer’s last three (3) financial statements prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles of the jurisdiction in which the Proposer is located, and audited by an
independent certified public accountant; or a statement from the Proposer regarding how financial information may
be reviewed by the Agency (This may require execution of an acceptable nondisclosure agreement between the
Agency and the Proposer.)

11. Attach as SCHEDULE FIVE a list of all principal Subcontractors and the percentage and character of Work
(Contract amount) that each will perform on this Contract.

12. If the Contractor or Subcontractor is a joint venture, submit PRE-AWARD EVALUATION DATA forms for each
member of the joint venture.

The above information is confidential and will not be divulged to any unauthorized personnel.

The undersigned certifies to the accuracy of all information:
Name and title: John Walsh
Company: Chief Commercial Officer

DocuSigned by:

Jolun (Nalsle 9/10/2021
TG NG iare Dat
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Schedule 1
Account Name Bus Plant Projected Percentage Model
Qty | Location | Completion Date | Complete
(First Bus)
Detroit 4 GVL 10/11/2021 95% Proterra
ZX5
Mountain Metro 4 LAX 10/15/2021 95% Proterra
ZX5
SUBURBAN 4 GVL 10/23/2021 92% Proterra
MOBILITY ZX5
AUTHORITY FOR
REGIONAL
TRANSPORTATION
City of Rock Hill 4 GVL 11/3/2021 100% Proterra
ZX5
lowa City Transit 4 LAX 11/10/2021 94% Proterra
ZX5
Duke University 2 GVL 11/14/2021 91% Proterra
ZX5
Biddeford Saco Old 2 GVL 11/15/2021 0% Proterra
Orchard Beach ZX5
(BSOOB) Transit
Valley Regional 8 LAX 12/1/2021 70% Proterra
Transit ZX5
Belle Urban 9 GVL 9/28/2021 94% Proterra
System — Racine ZX5
(The Bus)
Charleston Area 20 GVL 12/12/2021 21% Proterra
Regional ZX5
Transportation
Authority (CARTA)
Miami-Dade 32 GVL 1/3/2022 0% Proterra
Transit(MDT) ZX5
Miami Dade County | 62 GVL 1/5/2022 0% Proterra
ZX5

John Wayne 3 LAX 1/6/2022 0% Proterra
Airport ZX5

City of 5 LAX 1/29/2022 0% Proterra
Albuquergue ZX5

Guam Regional 8 GVL 1/31/2022 0% Proterra
Transit Authority ZX5

City and Borough 8 LAX 2/8/2022 0% Proterra
of Juneau ZX5
Headquarters East Coast Manufacturing West Coast Manufacturing

1815 Rollins Road, Burlingame, CA 94010 1 Whitlee Court, Greenville, SC 29607 383 Cheryl Lane, City of Industry, CA 91789

WWW.pro terra.com
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City of Moline 9 GVL 2/11/2022 0% Proterra
ZX5
Greater Portland 2 GVL 2/11/2022 0% Proterra
Transit District ZX5
Edmonton Transit 20 GVL 2/27/2022 0% Proterra
System ZX5
AppalCart 1 GVL 3/9/2022 0% Proterra
ZX5
Avon 2 LAX 3/9/2022 0% Proterra
ZX5
Santa Maria Area 2 LAX 3/16/2022 0% Proterra
Transit ZX5
Prince George 8 GVL 3/21/2022 0% Proterra
County Transit ZX5
System
Ontario 8 LAX 3/23/2022 0% Proterra
International (Lot 2) ZX5
Bridgeport 3 GVL 3/31/2022 0% Proterra
ZX5
City of Fresno 7 LAX 4/24/2022 0% Proterra
ZX5
Napa County 2 LAX 5/13/2022 0% Proterra
Transportation ZX5
Planning Agency
(NVTA)
Santa Rosa City 4 LAX 5/21/2022 0% Proterra
Bus ZX5
Sacramento 7 LAX 6/6/2022 0% Proterra
International ZX5
Airport
Sam Trans 4 LAX 8/27/2022 0% Proterra
ZX5
Roseville Transit 10 LAX 11/12/2022 0% Proterra
ZX5
DC Circulator 13 GVL 5/19/2023 0% Proterra
ZX5
D-DOT 13 GVL 5/19/2023 0% Proterra
ZX5
City of San Luis 1 LAX 8/11/2022 0% Proterra
Obispo ZX5
Headquarters East Coast Manufacturing West Coast Manufacturing

1815 Rollins Road, Burlingame, CA 94010 1 Whitlee Court, Greenville, SC 29607 383 Cheryl Lane, City of Industry, CA 91789

WWW.pro terra.com



PROTERRA

Schedule Two

1. Broward County Transit
1 N. University Dr. Suite 3100A
Plantation, FL 33324 R OWARD
James Fourcade — Director of Maintenance 7" COu NTY

garry.hurkens@edmonton.ca
(780) 496-4478

Fleet Information:
Broward County Transit Twelve (12) 40" ZX5 MAX buses that were delivered
between August and September 2021.

2. City of Tallahassee — StarMetro
555 Appleyard Dr.
Tallahassee, FL 32304
Walter Kirkland — Supervisor of Equipment Services
Walter.kirklandjr@talgov.com
(850) 891-5183

@starmetro

Fleet Information:

StarMetro is a repeat customer whose first order of three (3) Proterra BE35
buses were accepted in late 2012. StarMetro’s second order of thirteen (13) 35’
Catalyst E2 buses were accepted in August 2019. Two additional orders for
Proterra ZX5 buses are on order with an anticipated delivery in 2022.

3. GO Raleigh
4104 Poole Rd.
Raleigh, NC 27610
Byron Bryant — General Manager
byron.bryant@raleighnc.gov

(919) 996-3942 Ra Ie’,g h

Fleet Informaiton:
Go Raleigh has a diverse fleet of electric buses, that include
Two (2) Proterra 40’ ZX5 buses and three (3) Proterra Catalyst E2 buses.

Headquarters East Coast Manufacturing West Coast Manufacturing
1815 Rollins Road, Burlingame, CA 94010 1 Whitlee Court, Greenville, SC 29607 383 Cheryl Lane, City of Industry, CA 91789

www.proterra.com



Schedule 4

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors
Proterra Inc:

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Proterra Inc (the Company) as of December 31, 2020 and
2019, the related statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes (collectively, the financial statements). In our opinion, the
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31,
2020 and 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2020, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in note 2 to the financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for leases
as of January 1, 2020 due to the adoption of Accounting Standards Codification Topic 842, Leases.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered
with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent
with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB and in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement,
whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to
those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ KPMG LLP
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2012.

Santa Clara, California
April 7, 2021
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PROTERRA INC
BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

December 31,

2020 2019

Assets:

Cashand cashequivalents. . ........... .. .. ... .. $ 110,719 $ 40,240
Accounts receivable, Net. . ... ... ... 51,716 44,500
Short-term INVESTMENTS . . . . . ..ottt 68,990 39,877
INVeNtOTY . . . ot 92,330 94,042
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .. .................... .. ...... 7,455 6,684
Deferred costof goodssold ........ ... ... . 2,037 1,240
Restricted cash, current. ... ... .. ... . .. 8,397 5,970
Total CUITENt @SSELS . . . . vt et et e e e e e 341,644 232,553
Property, plant, and equipment,net ........... .. .. ... ... 53,587 47,515
Operating lease right-of-use assets. . ........... ... ... ... 10,310 —
Restricted cash, non-current . . ... ... .t 4,581 7,439
Other @SSetS. . . oo\t 4,789 6,366
TOtal @SSELS . . . v v ottt $ 414911 $ 293,873
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity:

Accounts payable . . ... $ 25,074 $ 37,865
Accrued liabilities. . . ... .. . 19,736 14,635
Deferred revenue, current. . .......... ... ... 16,015 10,358
Operating lease liabilities, current .. ........... .. .. .. ... oiiiiiina... 3,153 —
Debt, current. . . ... — —
Total current liabilities . .. ... .. 63,978 62,858
Debt, NON-CUITENt . . . . .. 133,252 24,574
Derivative liability. . . .. ... . 70,870 —
Warrant liability .. ... 39,670 —
Deferred revenue, non-current . ... .......... ...t 12,206 8,264
Operating lease liabilities, non-current. . . ..., 7,891 —
Other long-term liabilities. . ... ... ... . i 12,578 11,198
Total liabilities. . . . . .. ... 340,445 106,894

Commitments and contingencies (Note 7)
Stockholders’ equity:

Convertible preferred stock, $0.0001 par value; 129,572,982 shares authorized
and 129,003,889 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2020 and
2019; liquidation preference $631.3 million as of December 31, 2020 and
2000, 13 13

Common stock, $0.0001 par value; 175,100,000 shares authorized and

6,361,952 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2020;
170,000,000 shares authorized and 4,400,247 shares issued and outstanding

as of December 31,2019 ... ... ... .. . . . 1 —
Additional paid-incapital . . ........ .. .. .. .. 682,671 668,178
Accumulated deficit . ....... ... (608,219) (481,212)
Total stockholders’ equity . ... ...ttt 74,466 186,979
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . ........... ... ... ... oo, $ 414911 $ 293,873

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PROTERRA INC
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018

Productrevenue. . ...............co i .. $ 190,411 $ 172,295 $ 119,314
Parts and other servicerevenue. . .. ..................... 6,532 8,989 3,896
Total TeVeNUE. . . ... oot 196,943 181,284 123,210
Product cost of goods sold . .......... ... ... ... .. ... 181,987 173,428 130,660
Parts and other service cost of goodssold ................ 7,417 9,467 3,767
Total costof goodssold ........... .. ... ... ... ...... 189,404 182,895 134,427
Gross profit (10SS) . . ..o oo 7,539 (1,611) (11,217)
Research and development . ........................... 36,233 35,477 31,504
Selling, general and administrative. .. ................... 67,139 56,132 46,343
Asset impairment charge. . ......... .. .. .. . L. 121 6,440 —
Total operating eXpenses. . . . ... .vvven e et 103,493 98,049 77,847
Loss from operations. . . ..........oiiueninia. (95,954) (99,660) (89,064)
Interest expense, net . . ......... ... 15,413 2,704 3,476
Loss on valuation of derivative and warrant liabilities . . . . . .. 12,989 — —
Other expense (income), Net. ... ......oovvrinenennnn.. 2,629 (812) (918)
Loss before income taxes .. .........oovviiirenenennn... (126,985) (101,552) (91,622)
Provision for income taxes . ..................... ... ... 22 — —
Net 0SS . ottt $ (127,007) $ (101,552) $ (91,622)
Net loss per share of common stock, basic and diluted . . . . .. $ (25.85) $ (25.06) $ (32.36)
Shares used in computing net loss per share of common stock,

basicanddiluted .. ........ ... ... ... ... ... . ..., 4913 4,052 2,831

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PROTERRA INC
STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(in thousands)

Convertible
Preferred Stock Common Stock Additional Accumulated
Shares Amount  Shares Amount Paid-in Capital Deficit Total

Balance, December 31, 2017 . .. 88,165 $ 9 2282 $ — 3 386,541 $§ (288,038) $ 98,512
Adoption of accounting

standards . ................ — — — — 587 — 587
Issuance of stock, net of costs. . . 28,262 2 1,218 — 178,625 — 178,627
Stock-based compensation . . . . . — — — — 5,376 — 5,376
Netloss.........oovivinn... — — — — — (91,622) (91,622)
Balance, December 31, 2018 . .. 116,427 11 3,500 — 571,129 (379,660) 191,480
Issuance of stock, net of costs. . . 12,577 2 900 — 88,388 — 88,390
Issuance of warrants . .. ....... — — — — 141 — 141
Stock-based compensation . . . . . — — — — 8,520 — 8,520
Netloss.................... — — — — — (101,552) (101,552)
Balance, December 31, 2019 . .. 129,004 13 4,400 — 668,178 (481,212) 186,979
Issuance of stock, net of costs. . . — — 1,962 1 4,211 — 4,212
Stock-based compensation . . . .. — — — 10,282 — 10,282
Netloss.................... — — — — — (127,007) (127,007)
Balance, December 31, 2020 . . . 129,004 $ 13 6,362 $ 1 $ 682,671 $ (608,.219) $ 74,466

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PROTERRA INC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
Cash flows from operating activities:
Nt LOSS .« v ottt e $ (127,007) $ (101,552) $ (91,622)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization . . .............c.ouiinininain... 15,536 12,643 9,254
Loss on disposal of fixed assets . ............. .. ..., 143 527 793
Asset impairment charge. . .......... .. .. 121 6,440 —
Stock-based compensation . .. .......... .. i 10,282 8,520 5,376
Amortization of debt discount and issuance costs .. ................. 6,045 306 247
Accretion of debt end of term charge and PIK interest ............... 3,501 604 1,196
Loss on valuation of derivative and warrant liabilities. ............... 12,989 — —
Others . ... (153) (284) (335)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable .. ... ... (7,216) (9,005) (23,1906)
INVeNtOry . . . oot 2,182 (15,692) (23,642)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . ............. ... ........ (1,043) 563 (5,002)
Deferred cost of goods sold . ........ ... ... .. i (797) 4,207 (3,356)
Operating lease right-of-use assets and liabilities. . .................. 87 — —
Other @SSetS. . . vt v ettt e 1,575 (4,746) (718)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities .. .......... ... .. ... ..... (4,090) (1,025) 12,545
Deferred revenue, current and non-current. . .. ... .................. 9,599 132 11,780
Other non-current liabilities . ............. .. ... ... i ... 2,176 1,068 3,001
Net cash used in operating activities. . . .. ......oovvinernennenenn.. (76,070) (97,294) (103,679)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investments . ............. .. ..t (108,960) (71,817) (34,152)
Proceeds from maturities of investments .. ........................ 80,000 50,400 16,200
Purchase of property and equipment ............................. (25,565) (13,810) (16,698)
Net cash used in investing activities . . . .........ovuiinnaen.. (54,525) (35,227) (34,650)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from debt, net of issuance costs. .. ....................... 219,471 21,362 —
Repaymentofidebt .......... .. ... . . (22,787) (26,708) —
Repayment of finance obligation . ............ ... ... ... ....... (484) (452) (452)
Proceeds from government grants. . . .......... ... ... 275 522 1,507
Proceeds from exercise of stock options. .. ........................ 4,168 1,726 1,916
Proceeds from issuance of stock, net of issuance costs .. ............. — 86,746 173,659
Net cash provided by financing activities. ... ...................... 200,643 83,196 176,630
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents, and restricted cash . . 70,048 (49,325) 38,301
Cash and cash equivalents, and restricted cash at the beginning of period. . 53,649 102,974 64,673
Cash and cash equivalents, and restricted cash at the end of period. . . . . . $ 123,697 $ 53,649 $ 102,974
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid forinterest .. ......... .. ... .o, $ 5827 $ 4881 $ 2,648
Cash paid for inCome taxes. . .. ....ovven et 9 — —
Non-cash investing and financing activity:
Issuance of warrants in connection with debt borrowing . ............. $ — S 141 $ —
Assets acquired through accounts payable and accrued liabilities . . . . . .. 659 4,017 1,146
Non-cash transfer of vehicles from inventory to internal use. .......... — 967 —
Non-cash transfer of leased assets to inventory .. ................... 635 — —

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PROTERRA INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization and Description of Business

Proterra Inc (“Proterra” or the “Company”) is a leading developer and producer of electric vehicle technology
for commercial application. Proterra designs, develops, manufactures, and sells electric transit buses as an original
equipment manufacturer for North American public transit agencies, airports, universities, and other commercial
transit fleets. It also designs, develops, manufactures, sells, and integrates proprietary battery systems and
electrification solutions for global commercial vehicle manufacturers. Additionally, Proterra provides fleet-scale,
high-power charging solutions for our customers. Proterra was originally formed in June 2004 as a Colorado limited
liability company and converted to a Delaware corporation in February 2010. The Company operates from its
headquarters and battery production facility in Burlingame, California. The Company also has manufacturing and
product development facilities in Greenville, South Carolina and City of Industry, California.

The Company has incurred net losses and negative cash flows from operations since inception. As of
December 31, 2020, the Company has an accumulated deficit of $608.2 million, and $179.7 million of cash and cash
equivalents and short-term investments. The Company has funded operations primarily through a combination of
equity and debt financing. Management believes that the Company’s currently available resources will be sufficient
to fund its cash requirements for at least the next twelve months. However, there can be no assurance that future
financings will be successfully completed or completed on terms acceptable to the Company. These financial
statements do not include any adjustments that may result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Basis of Presentation

The Company prepared the financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (“U.S. GAAP”).

The Company has not experienced any significant impact to estimates or assumptions as a result of the
COVID-19 pandemic. We will continue to monitor impacts of the pandemic on an ongoing basis. While the
COVID-19 pandemic has not had a material adverse impact on our financial condition and results of operations to
date, the future impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our operational and financial performance will depend on
certain developments, including the duration and spread of the pandemic, impact on our customers and effect on
our suppliers, all of which are uncertain and cannot be predicted.

Segments

The Company operates in the United States and started to expand its business to the European Union in
2018 and Canada in 2019. The revenue generated outside of the United States was not material for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2019. The revenue generated outside of the United States was about 28% of total revenue or
$55.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2020, which was primarily generated from Canada.

The Company’s chief operating decision maker is its Chief Executive Officer (CEO), who reviews financial
information presented at the entity level. Accordingly, the Company has determined that it has a single reportable
segment.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires the use of estimates and
judgments that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements and accompanying notes. U.S. GAAP requires
the Company to make estimates and judgments in several areas including, but not limited to, those related to
revenue recognition, collectability of accounts receivable, valuation of inventories, valuation of Convertible Notes
(See Note 3), warranty liability, contingent liabilities, stock-based compensation expense, useful lives of property,
plant, and equipment, recoverability of assets, residual value of leased assets, and the valuation of deferred tax
assets. These estimates are based on historical facts and various other assumptions that the Company believes are
reasonable. Actual results could differ materially from those estimates.

F-27

PROTERRA CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION - PLEASE DO NOT SHARE



PROTERRA INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont.)
Foreign Currency Transactions

The U.S. dollar is the Company’s functional currency. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than the U.S. dollar are remeasured to the U.S. dollar at period end, and transaction gains and
losses are recorded in other expense (income), net in the statements of operations. Net gains or losses resulting from
foreign exchange transactions were not material for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2019. The net losses
resulting from foreign exchange transactions were $1.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with original maturities of three months or
less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Credit Losses

Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. The Company determines
the allowance for credit losses based on historical write-off experience, an analysis of the aging of outstanding
receivables, customer payment patterns and expectations of changes in macroeconomic conditions that may affect
the collectability of outstanding receivables. The allowance for credit losses was not material as of December 31,
2020 and 2019.

Short-Term Investments

The Company’s primary objectives for investment activities are to preserve principal, provide liquidity,
and maximize income without significantly increasing risk. The Company classifies its short-term investments
as available-for-sale at the time of purchase because it is intended that these investments are available for current
operations. Investments with maturities of one year or less from the balance sheet date are classified as short-term
investments.

Investments are reported at fair value and are subject to periodic impairment review. Unrealized gains and
losses related to changes in the fair value of these securities are recognized in accumulated other comprehensive
loss. The ultimate value realized on these securities is subject to market price volatility until they are sold. Realized
gains or losses from short-term investments are recorded in other expense (income), net.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, short-term investments were $69.0 million and $39.9 million,
respectively.

Restricted Cash

The Company maintains certain cash amounts restricted as to withdrawal or use. The restricted cash is
primarily collateral for performance bonds issued to certain customers. The collateral is provided in the form of a
cash deposit to either support the bond directly or to collateralize a letter of credit that supports the performance
bonds. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, restricted cash was $13.0 million and $13.4 million, respectively.

Credit Risk and Concentration

Our financial instruments that are potentially subject to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash,
cash equivalents, restricted cash, short-term investments, and accounts receivable. Cash and cash equivalents and
short-term investments are maintained primarily at two financial institutions, and deposits exceed federally insured
limits. Risks associated with cash and cash equivalents, and short-term investments are mitigated by banking with
creditworthy financial institutions. The Company has not experienced any losses on its deposits of cash and cash
equivalents or its short-term investments.
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PROTERRA INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont.)

Cash equivalents consist of short-term money market funds, corporate debt securities, and debt securities
issued by the U.S. Treasury, which are deposited with reputable financial institutions. The Company’s cash
management and investment policy limits investment instruments to investment-grade securities with the objective to
preserve capital and to maintain liquidity until the funds can be used in business operations.

Accounts receivable are typically unsecured and are generally derived from revenue earned from transit
agencies, universities and airports in North America and global commercial vehicle manufacturers in both North
America and the European Union. The Company periodically evaluates the collectability of its accounts receivable
and provides an allowance for potential credit losses as necessary.

Given the large order value for customers and the relatively low number of customers, revenue and accounts
receivable have typically been concentrated with a limited number of customers.

Revenue Accounts Receivable
Year Ended December 31, December 31,
2020 2019 2018 2020 2019
Number of customers accounted
for 10% or more* . .......... 1 — 3 2 4
* One customer accounted for 21% of total revenue for year ended December 31, 2020 and 33% of the accounts receivable,

net as of December 31, 2020. No other individual customer accounted for more than 20% of total revenue for years ended
December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, or accounts receivable, net as of December 31, 2020 and 2019.

Single source suppliers provide the Company with a number of components that are required for
manufacturing of our current products. In other instances, although there may be multiple suppliers available, many
of the components are purchased from a single source. If these single source suppliers fail to meet the Company’s
requirements on a timely basis at competitive prices, the Company could suffer manufacturing delays, a possible loss
of revenue, or incur higher cost of sales, any of which could adversely impact the Company’s operating results.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company’s financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, short-term investments, accounts payable, and accrued and other current liabilities, approximates fair
value due to the short period of time to maturity, receipt, or payment. The carrying amount of the Company’s debt,
except for Convertible Notes, approximates its fair value as the stated interest rates approximate market rates
currently available to the Company.

In August 2020, the Company issued Convertible Notes that contain embedded features subject to derivative
accounting. These embedded features are composed of conversion options that have the economic characteristics of a
contingent early redemption feature settled in a variable number of shares of the Company’s stock. These conversion
options are bifurcated and accounted for as a derivative liability separately from the host debt instrument. Embedded
derivatives are recognized as a derivative liability on the balance sheet. The derivative liability is measured at fair
value and subject to remeasurement at each balance sheet date.

The warrants issued in connection with the Convertible Notes are classified as a liability because they can
become exercisable into common stock upon a Qualified Initial Public Offering (“QIPO”) or into convertible
preferred stock after 5 years from issuance date in the event that there is no QIPO during such period. Such warrants
are measured at fair value, subject to remeasurement at each balance sheet date.

Inventories

Inventories are recorded at the lower of cost and net realizable value using the first-in, first-out method.
Inventory costs consist primarily of the cost of materials, manufacturing support costs, including labor and factory
overhead associated with such production, and shipping costs. The costs of vehicles, charger equipment or prototype
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products delivered to customers that have not yet met revenue recognition criteria are also included in inventories.
We assess the valuation of inventory and periodically record a provision to adjust inventory to its estimated net
realizable value, including when we determine inventory to be obsolete or in excess of anticipated demand. Once
inventory has been written-off or written-down, it creates a new cost basis for the inventory that is not subsequently
written-up.

Deferred Cost of Goods Sold

Deferred cost of goods sold primarily includes incurred costs for charging system installations that have not
met revenue recognition criteria.

Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment, including leasehold improvements, are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, as follows:

Property, Plant, and Equipment Estimated Useful Life

Computer hardware 3 years

Computer software 3 to 5 years

Internally used vehicles and charging systems over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or 5 years

Machinery and equipment 5 tol2 years

Office furniture and equipment 5 years

Tooling 5 years

Leasehold improvements over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the terms of the
related leases

Leased batteries over the shorter of the terms of the related leases or 12 years

Leased vehicles and charging systems over the shorter of the terms of the related leases or 5 years

In the fourth quarter of 2019, we completed a review of the estimated useful lives of vehicles and charging
equipment used for demonstration purposes. Based on this review, we revised the estimated useful lives of demo
vehicles from 12 years to five years effective on November 1, 2019, after considering the condition of assets and
our long-term strategy for operating such assets. We believe this change in estimate is appropriate, as it is based on
actual experience and the expectations for the ongoing productive use of these assets. The impact to depreciation
expense caused by this change in estimate is not material to selling, general and administrative expense on the
statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2019 or future periods.

If the estimated useful life of an asset is less than the stated number of years in our capitalization policy, the
depreciation expense will be recorded over the shorter period.

Upon the retirement or sale of property, plant, and equipment, the cost and associated accumulated
depreciation are removed from the balance sheet, and the resulting gain or loss is reflected on the statement of
operations. Maintenance and repair expenditures are expensed as incurred while major improvements that increase
the functionality, output, or expected life of an asset are capitalized and depreciated ratably over the identified
useful life.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates the recoverability of property, plant, and equipment and right-of-use assets for
possible impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not
be recoverable. Recoverability of these assets is measured by a comparison of the carrying amounts to the future
undiscounted cash flows the assets are expected to generate. If such review indicates that the carrying amount of
long-lived assets is not recoverable, the carrying amount of such assets is reduced to fair value.
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In addition to the recoverability assessment, the Company periodically reviews the remaining estimated useful
lives of property, plant, and equipment. If the estimated useful life assumption for any asset is reduced, the remaining
net book value is depreciated over the revised estimated useful life.

The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment at the lowest level for which separate cash flows can
be identified. During the fourth quarter of 2019, due to the introduction of new products and related technology
advancements, we determined that an impairment analysis of certain assets leased to customers was required to be
performed. The estimated undiscounted future cash flows generated by these assets were less than their carrying
amounts. The carrying amounts of the assets were reduced to fair value, which resulted in an impairment charge
of $6.4 million recorded in the statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2019.

No impairment charge was recognized in 2018. We recorded $0.1 million impairment charge associated with a
facility lease for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists of billings or payments received in advance of revenue recognition that are
recognized as revenue once the revenue recognition criteria are met. In some instances, progress billings are issued
upon meeting certain milestones stated in the contracts. Accordingly, the deferred revenue balance does not represent
the total contract value of non-cancelable arrangements. Invoices are typically due within 30 to 40 days.

Deferred revenue was $28.2 million and $18.6 million as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. For
the year ended December 31, 2020, $16.5 million revenue was recognized from the deferred revenue balance as
of December 31, 2019. The reduction in deferred revenue was offset by new billings for products and extended
warranty services for which revenue had not been recognized as of December 31, 2020. The current portion of
deferred revenue represents the amount that is expected to be recognized as revenue within one year from the
balance sheet date.

Revenue Recognition

We derive revenue primarily from the sale of vehicles and charging systems, the installation of charging
systems, the sale of battery systems and powertrain components to other vehicle manufacturers, as well as the sale of
spare parts and other services provided to customers. Product revenue consists of revenue earned from vehicles and
charging systems, battery systems and powertrain components, installation of charging systems, and revenue from
leased vehicles, charging systems, and batteries under operating leases. Leasing revenue recognized over time was
approximately $2.3 million, $3.8 million and $3.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. Parts and other service revenue includes revenue earned from spare parts, the design and development
of battery systems and drive systems for other vehicle manufacturers, and extended warranties.

Goods and services that are promised in our contracts include vehicles, charging systems, battery systems and
powertrain components to other vehicle manufacturers, installation of charging systems, spare parts, and extended
warranty. We assess the products and services promised in contracts at contract inception, and identify performance
obligations for each promise to transfer to the customer a product or service that is distinct. If a product or service is
separately identifiable from other items in the bundled arrangement and a customer can benefit from the product or
service on its own or with other resources that are readily available to the customer, then such product or service is
considered distinct. Customer contracts typically have multiple performance obligations. Generally, our goods and
services are considered separate performance obligations. Depending on the contractual arrangement, the charging
systems and related installation services if purchased by customer are typically considered as one performance
obligation, as they represent inputs of a combined integrated output which benefits the customer. Development
services are typically sold on a stand-alone basis and are not bundled with other goods or services.
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The transaction price of the contract is allocated to each performance obligation in a manner depicting the
amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer (the “allocation objective™). If the allocation objective is met at contractual prices, no
further allocations are made. Otherwise, the Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation
identified in the contract on a relative standalone selling price basis.

To determine the standalone selling price of its promised products or services, we conduct an analysis
to determine whether its products or services have an observable standalone selling price. In determining the
observable standalone selling price, the Company requires that a substantial majority of the standalone selling prices
for a product or service fall within a reasonably narrow range. If there is no directly observable standalone selling
price for a particular product or service, then we estimate a standalone selling price by using the estimated cost plus
margin or by reviewing external and internal market factors including, but not limited to, pricing practices including
historical discounting, major service groups, and the geographies in which we offer products and services.

We recognize revenue when or as it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of a product or
service to a customer.

Revenue from product sales is recognized when control of the underlying performance obligations is
transferred to the customer. Revenue from vehicles and charging systems, and installation of charging systems
is typically recognized upon acceptance by the customer. Under certain contract arrangements, the control of
the performance obligations related to the charging systems is transferred over time, and the associated revenue
is recognized over the installation period using an input measure based on costs incurred to date relative to total
estimated costs to completion. Spare parts revenue is recognized upon shipment. Extended warranty revenue is
recognized over the life of the extended warranty using the time elapsed method. Development service contracts
typically include the delivery of prototype products to customers. The performance obligation associated with
the development of prototype products as well as battery systems and powertrain components to other vehicle
manufacturers, is satisfied at a point in time, typically upon shipping.

Revenue derived from performance obligations satisfied over time from charging systems and installation was
$6.0 million, $7.2 million and $0.6 million in the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018, respectively.
Extended warranty revenue is not material to date.

Typically, the Company does not have contract assets, as rights to consideration in exchange for goods or
services that have transferred to a customer are not conditional on anything other than the passage of time. In certain
cases, there is a condition that requires a contract asset to be recognized. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the
contract assets balance was $2.8 million and $0.6 million, respectively. The contract assets are expected to be billed
within the next twelve months and are recorded in the prepaid expenses and other current assets on the balance
sheets.

As of December 31, 2020, the amount of remaining performance obligations that have not been recognized as
revenue was $229.4 million, of which 67% was expected to be recognized as revenue over the next 12 months and
the remainder thereafter. This amount excludes the value of remaining performance obligations for contracts with an
original expected length of one year or less.

Lease Arrangements

The Company offers customers leasing alternatives outside of the standard sales contracts for vehicles,
charging equipment and batteries used in the vehicles. The leasing arrangements are typically bundled together with
the sales contracts. We assessed the nature of the bundled arrangements under the revenue accounting standard.

For arrangements that contain a lease, we determined the classification of the lease in accordance with Topic

840, Leases, prior to the adoption of Topic 842, Leases, on January 1, 2020. A lease arrangement that transfers
substantially all of the benefits and risks incident to ownership of the products is classified as a sales-type lease
based on the criteria established by the accounting standard; otherwise the lease is classified as an operating lease.
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For sales-type leases, product revenue is recognized upon customer acceptance of the underlying leased assets.
The current portion of net investment in sales-type leases is recorded in Accounts Receivable, and the non-current
portion is recorded in Other Assets on the Company’s balance sheets. The discounted unguaranteed residual value of
underlying leased assets is not material to the net investment in lease balance.

For operating leases, the leasing revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term, which is
commenced upon customer acceptance.

We monitor the performance of customers who leased batteries and are subject to ongoing payments. No
allowance was recorded for the receivables under the leasing arrangements.

We adopted the new lease accounting standard, Topic 842, Leases, on January 1, 2020. We determine whether
an arrangement is or contains a lease at inception. Short-term leases with a term of less than 12 months will not be
recognized in the right-of-use assets or lease liabilities. The lease and non-lease components are not separated for all
leases regardless of whether the Company is the lessee or a lessor to the lease. Refer to Note 6, Leases, for additional
information.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold includes direct material and labor costs, manufacturing overhead including depreciation
expense, freight costs, and reserves for estimated warranty expenses. Cost of goods sold also includes charges to
write-down the carrying value of inventory when it exceeds its estimated net realizable value and to provide for
on-hand inventory that is either obsolete or in excess of forecasted demand. Costs of development services are
expensed as incurred. Costs of development services incurred in periods prior to the finalization of an agreement are
recorded as research and development expense. Once an agreement is finalized, these costs are recorded in cost of
goods sold.

Sales and Other Taxes

Taxes assessed by various government entities, such as sales, use, and value added taxes, collected at the time
of sale are excluded from revenue.

Shipping Costs

Amounts billed to customers related to shipping and handling are classified as revenue, and the related
shipping and handling costs are included in cost of goods sold.

Research and Development Costs

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. Research and development expense consists
primarily of payroll and benefits of those employees engaged in research, design, and development activities, costs
related to prototype parts and design tools, license expenses related to intellectual property, supplies and services,
depreciation, and other occupancy costs.

Advertising Expenses

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expenses were $0.6 million, $0.9 million, and
$0.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Product Warranties

The Company provides a limited warranty to customers on vehicles, charging systems, and battery systems.
The limited warranty ranges from one to 12 years depending on the components. Separately, the Company also
periodically performs field service actions related to product service campaigns. Pursuant to these warranties and
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field service actions, we will repair, replace, or adjust the parts on the products that are defective in factory-supplied
materials or workmanship. A warranty reserve for the products sold is recorded at the point of revenue recognition,
which includes the best estimate of the projected costs to repair or replace items under the limited warranty and field
service actions. These estimates are based on actual claims incurred to date and an estimate of the nature, frequency
and costs of future claims. These estimates are inherently uncertain given the relatively short history of sales.
Changes to the historical or projected warranty experience may cause material changes to the warranty reserve in the
future. The warranty reserve does not include projected warranty costs associated with the vehicles under operating
leases, as the costs to repair these warranty claims are expensed as incurred. The portion of the warranty reserve
expected to be incurred within the next 12 months is included within accrued liabilities while the remaining balance
is included within other long-term liabilities on the balance sheets.

Warranty expense is recorded as a component of cost of goods sold. Accrued warranty activity consisted of the
following (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018

Warranty reserve — beginning of period . . .......... ... ... ...... $ 14,926 $ 10,602 $ 2,581
Warranty costs incurred . ......... ... (4,214) (6,031) (2,653)
Net changes in liability for pre-existing warranties, including

CXPITAtIONS. . o« ottt e e (3,392) (840) —
Provision for warranty . ........... ... ... ... 11,262 11,195 10,674
Warranty reserve —end of period . . ............................ $ 18,582 $ 14926 $ 10,602

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company uses the fair value method for recording stock-based compensation expense. Stock-based
compensation expense for stock options is estimated at the grant date based on each stock option’s fair value as
calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The stock-based compensation expense for stock option
grants is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for the entire award.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are computed using the asset and liability method, under which deferred tax assets and liabilities
are determined based on the difference between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using
enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income. Valuation
allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized.

The Company recognizes tax benefits from uncertain tax positions only if it is more likely than not that the
tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities based on the technical merits of the position.
The Company adjusts these reserves when facts and circumstances change, such as the closing of a tax audit or the
refinement of an estimate. The provision for income taxes includes the effects of any reserves that are considered
appropriate.

Accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are classified as income tax expense.

Government Incentives

The Company receives incentives from the federal and state government agencies in the form of grants.
Incentives are recorded in the financial statements in accordance with their purposes, either as a reduction of
expense or a reduction of the cost of the capital investment. The benefit of these incentives is recorded when
performance is complete and all conditions as specified in the agreement are fulfilled.
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California and certain other states provide incentives to accelerate the purchase of cleaner, more efficient
buses in the form of point-of-sale discounts to vehicle purchasers. These incentives are included in the customer
contract value, and recognized as revenue once all revenue recognition criteria are met.

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The Company did not have other comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019
and 2018, respectively.

2. Adoption of New Accounting Standards

Topic 842, Leases. This standard provides guidance on the recognition, measurement, presentation,
and disclosure of leases. The new standard supersedes the present U.S. GAAP standard on leases and requires
substantially all leases to be reported on the balance sheet as right-of-use assets and lease obligations. The Company
elected to adopt the new lease accounting standard on January 1, 2020 using the optional transition method,
recognizing a cumulative-effect adjustment to the balance sheet and not adjusting comparative information for prior
periods. Refer to Note 6, Leases, for additional information.

ASU No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses
on Financial Instruments. This standard requires the measurement and recognition of expected credit losses
for financial assets held at amortized cost. The Company adopted this standard on January 1, 2020, and it had no
material impact on the financial statements.

ASU No. 2018-13, Changes to Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820). This
standard improves the effectiveness of disclosure requirements for recurring and nonrecurring fair value
measurements. This standard removes, modifies, and adds certain disclosure requirements. The Company adopted
this standard on January 1, 2020, and it had no material impact on the financial statements.

ASU No. 2018-15, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other — Internal-Use Software (Subtopic 350-40):
Customer’s Accounting for Implementation Costs Incurred in a Cloud Computing Arrangement That Is a Service
Contract. This standard aligns the requirements for capitalizing implementation costs incurred in a hosting
arrangement that is a service contract requiring the capitalization of implementation costs incurred to develop or
obtain internal-use software (and hosting arrangements that include an internal-use software license). The Company
adopted this standard on January 1, 2020, and it had no material impact on the financial statements.

ASU No. 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate
Reform on Financial Reporting. The amendments in this standard provide optional guidance for a limited time
to ease the potential burden in accounting for reference rate reform. The new guidance provides optional expedients
and exceptions for applying U.S. GAAP to contracts, hedging relationships and other transactions affected by
reference rate reform if certain criteria are met. The amendments apply only to contracts and hedging relationships
that reference the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) or another reference rate expected to be discontinued
due to reference rate reform. These amendments are effective from March 2020 through December 31, 2022. The
amendments have no material impact on the financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

ASU No. 2019-12, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes. This standard
simplifies the accounting for income taxes, eliminates certain exceptions within Topic 740, Income Taxes, and
clarifies certain aspects of the current guidance to promote consistency among reporting entities. The Company will
adopt this standard on January 1, 2021, and expect no material impact on the financial statements.

ASU No. 2020-06, Accounting for Convertible Instruments and Contracts in an Entity’s Own Equity. This
standard simplifies the accounting for convertible instruments by removing certain separation models in ASC
470-20, Debt — Debt with Conversion and Other Options. This standard updates the guidance on certain embedded
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conversion features that are not required to be accounted for as derivatives under Topic 815, Derivatives and
Hedging, or that do not result in substantial premiums accounted for as paid-in capital, such that those features are
no longer required to be separated from the host contract. The convertible debt instruments will be accounted for as
a single liability measured at amortized cost. This will also result in the interest expense recognized for convertible
debt instruments to be typically closer to the coupon interest rate when applying the guidance in Topic 835, Interest.
Further, this standard made amendments to the EPS guidance in Topic 260 for convertible instruments, the most
significant impact of which is requiring the use of the if-converted method for diluted earnings per share calculation,
and no longer allowing the net share settlement method. This standard also made revisions to Topic 815-40, which
provides guidance on how an entity must determine whether a contract qualifies for a scope exception from
derivative accounting. The amendments to Topic 815-40 change the scope of contracts that are recognized as assets
or liabilities. This standard is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2021, with early
adoption permitted after December 15, 2020. Adoption of this standard can either be on a modified retrospective

or full retrospective basis. The Company is currently evaluating this standard but expect no material impact on the
financial statements.

3. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company measures certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value. Fair value is determined based
on the exit price that would be received from selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is estimated by applying the following hierarchy:

Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets, or other inputs that are observable or
can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities; and

Level 3 — Inputs that are generally unobservable and typically reflect management’s estimate of assumptions
that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.

Financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis using the above input categories were as follows
(in thousands):

Fair Value at

Pricing December 31,
Category 2020 2019
Assets:
Cash equivalents:

Money market funds . ........................... Level 1 $ 744§ 3,334

U.S. Treasury Securities. .. .. ............ouuenn.. Level 1 64,997 29,957
Short-term investments:

U.S. Treasury SeCurities. .. ...........ooueunen.n.. Level 1 68,990 39,877
Total ... .. $ 134,731 $ 73,168
Liabilities:

Other non-current liabilities:

Derivative liability. .. ............... ... ... ..... Level 3 $ 70,870 $ —

Warrant liability ................ ... ... ... ..... Level 3 39,670 —
Total ..o $ 110,540 $ —

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, short-term investments were primarily comprised of U.S. Treasury
securities. The unrealized gain/losses related to fixed income debt securities were immaterial and primarily due to
changes in interest rates, which are temporary in nature.
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As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the contractual maturities of the short-term investments were less than
one year.

In August 2020, the Company issued Convertible Notes that contain embedded features subject to derivative
accounting. Refer to Note 5, Debt, for additional information on the Convertible Notes.

The embedded derivatives are recognized as a derivative liability on the balance sheet, and are measured at fair
value, subject to remeasurement at each balance sheet date. The fair value of derivative liability is measured as the
difference between the estimated value of the Convertible Notes with and without such conversion features utilizing
Monte Carlo simulation pricing model.

The warrants issued in connection with the Convertible Notes are classified as a liability because they can
become exercisable into common stock upon a QIPO or into convertible preferred stock after five years from
issuance date in the event that there is no QIPO during such period. Such warrants are measured at fair value, subject
to remeasurement at each balance sheet date. The fair value of the warrant liability is measured using Monte Carlo
Simulation pricing model.

The fair value of the Convertible Notes was $365.9 million as of December 31, 2020. The carrying value of
the Convertible Notes of $106.4 million, net of $97.1 million unamortized debt discount and issuance costs, as of
December 31, 2020, was recorded in Debt, non-current on the balance sheets.

The valuation of derivative and warranty liabilities and the Convertible Notes are based on significant inputs
not observable in the market, and thus represents a level 3 measure. The key inputs to the valuation model include
fair value of equity, equity volatility, expected term until a liquidity event to exit, expected term until exercise, and
risk-free interest rate.

A summary of the changes in the fair value of the derivative liability is as follows (in thousands):

Amount
Derivative liability —at iSSUANCE. . . ... . ... .. $ 68,514
Change in fair value . . ... ... . 2,356
Derivative liability — December 31, 2020. . . .. ... ... $ 70,870

A summary of the changes in the fair value of the warrant liability is as follows (in thousands):

Amount
Warrant liability — at iSSUANCE. . . . . ..ottt ettt e e e e e e e $ 29,037
Change in fair value . .. ... ... 10,633
Warrant liability — December 31, 2020. . . . ... ... $ 39,670

The change in fair value of derivative and warrant liabilities is recorded in the statement of operations.

4. Balance Sheet Components
Cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2020 2019
Cash. . .. $ 44978 $ 6,949
Cashequivalents . . .......... . i e e 65,741 33,291
Total cash and cash equivalents ............. ... ... ... ... ... .. ... ... $ 110,719 $ 40,240
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The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash reported within the
balance sheets to the total of such amounts shown on the statements of cash flows.

December 31,

2020 2019
Cashandcashequivalents. . ......... ... .. .. .. .. $ 110,719 $ 40,240
Restricted cash, current portion . ............ ... ... 8,397 5,970
Restricted cash, net of current portion . ............... ... .. ... ... . ... .. 4,581 7,439
Total restricted cash .. ... .. ... . .. . . 12,978 13,409
Total cash and cash equivalents, and restricted cash. . ..................... $ 123,697 $ 53,649

Inventories consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2020 2019
Raw materials . .. . ..ot $ 31,148 § 46,495
WOTK 1N PrOgress . . .o vttt 8,042 23,197
Finished goods . ... ... 47,756 19,400
SEIVICE PATS . . . ot ottt et et 5,384 4,950
Total INVENTOTIES . . . . ottt et e e e e e e e e e e $ 92,330 $ 94,042

The Company recorded a write-down of excess or obsolete inventories to cost of goods sold of $3.0 million,
$4.9 million and $4.2 million in the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Property, plant, and equipment, net, consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2020 2019

Computer hardwWare. . . .. ...ttt e e $ 4,708 $ 3,830
Computer SOfTWATE . . .. oottt e 8,849 6,558
Internally used vehicles and charging systems. . ......................... 19,136 12,936
Leased vehicles and batteries ... .......... it 7,081 10,715
Leasehold improvements . ............... ...ttt 10,234 8,275
Machinery and eqUipment . .. ...........oui it 26,026 14,237
Office furniture and equipment .. ................ ittt 1,854 1,876
TOOlINg . .ot 21,727 17,918
Finance lease right-of-use assets. .. .......... ... .. .. i 179 —
ConStruction i PIrOZIESS . « . o . vt vttt e e e e e e e e 1,830 6,642

101,624 82,987
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization. .. ..................... (48,037) (35,472)
Total .o $ 53,587 § 47,515

Construction in progress was comprised of various assets that are not available for their intended use as of the
balance sheet date.

Depreciation and amortization expense were $15.5 million, $12.6 million and $9.3 million for the years ended
December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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Accrued liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands):

Accrued payroll and related expenses
Accrued sales and use tax
WaAITANLY TESETVE . « o . vttt et e e e e e e e et e e e e e et e
Financing obligation . .. ........... .. ..
Accrued INEIeSt . . ..o vttt
Accrued audit and accounting related expenses
Accrued charger installation costs

Other accrued expenses

Total ..o

Other long-term liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands):

Financing obligation . .. ... ... ..
Accrued INTETeSt . .. .o e
Warranty re€SCIVE. . . . o v et ettt e ettt e e e e
Deferred rent. .. ... ...

December 31,

2020 2019

6,095 § 2,799

975 1,254

6,121 7,697
3,056 850

127 174

428 419

769 547

1,565 895
19,736 § 14,635

December 31,

2020 2019
— 3,056
— 120
12,461 7,229
— 793
117 —
12,578 § 11,198

In July 2016, we entered into a bus sale and lease transaction for ten Catalyst buses. These buses are leased
to other parties for five years by the customer. At the end of the lease term, the fourth quarter of 2021, we have
an obligation to repurchase the buses back from the customer. We make a portion of the monthly lease payments
directly to the customer and also provided a guarantee to the customer on the remaining lease payments if the lessee
fails to pay. We received $6.0 million from the customer directly upon delivery in 2016. Under U.S. GAAP, this sales
transaction is considered as a borrowing and the lease transaction is considered as an operating lease.

The financing obligation was $3.1 million and $3.9 million as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
Interest expense on the financing obligation is recognized using the effective interest method. The monthly lease
payment is recognized as leasing revenue. The costs of the buses are recorded as leased vehicles in property, plant,
and equipment on the balance sheets.

5. Debt

Debt, net of debt discount and issuance costs, consisted of the following (in thousands):

Hercules Credit Facility

Senior Credit Facility .......... . . .
PPP loan . ... ...
Convertible NOES . . ...ttt e

Total Debt, non-current
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2020 2019
— $ 9,640
16,809 14,934
10,000 —
106,443 —
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Loan and Security Agreement

The Company entered into a loan and security agreement with Hercules Capital, Inc. (“Hercules Credit Facility™)
in 2015, and amendments in 2016 and 2017. In May 2019, the Company entered into an amendment to the Hercules
Credit Facility to repay $20.0 million in principal, and extend the maturity date of the remaining $10.0 million
outstanding principal to May 2021. The interest rate was composed of a cash interest rate of the greater of 10.55%
or 10.55% plus the prime rate minus 5.5% and a PIK interest rate of 1.75% per annum. The loan had an interest only
period through its maturity date. The $2.3 million end-of-term charge under the Amended Hercules Credit Facility was
paid on June 1, 2019. The $0.8 million accrued PIK interest under the existing Hercules Credit Facility and $0.2 million
prepayment penalty were paid at the closing of the amendment. As of December 31, 2019, the outstanding balance
under the Hercules Credit Facility was $10.0 million, and the cash interest rate was 10.55% per annum.

In connection with entering into the Hercules Credit Facility in 2015, the Company issued to Hercules a
warrant to purchase 397,932 shares of Series 4 convertible preferred stock. The Company determined the fair value
of the convertible preferred stock warrant shares was $0.3 million, which was recorded as a debt discount and a
convertible preferred stock warrant liability, as discussed further in Note 8. In connection with the first amendment,
the Company issued to Hercules an additional warrant to purchase 79,587 shares of Series 4 convertible preferred
stock. The Company determined the fair value of the convertible preferred stock warrant was $0.1 million, which
was recorded as a debt discount and a convertible preferred stock warrant liability, as discussed further in Note 8.
In connection with the Amended Hercules Credit Facility in 2019, the Company issued to Hercules a warrant to
purchase 36,630 shares of common stock warrants. The Company determined the fair value of the common stock
warrant was $0.1 million, which was recorded as a debt discount and classified as equity in additional paid-in
capital. The warrant is exercisable for 10 years, and will automatically exercise upon the initial public offering.

The end-of-term charge was accreted to accrued interest using the effective-interest method from the funding
date to its payment due date. As of December 31, 2019, the accrued PIK interest balance was $0.1 million.

The balance of debt issuance costs and discounts was $0.4 million as of December 31, 2019. The debt issuance
cost and debt discounts were amortized to interest expense over the terms of the Hercules Credit Facility using
the effective interest method. The amortization of debt issuance cost and debt discounts to interest expense was
$0.2 million, $0.3 million and $0.2 million for 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The Company’s obligations under the Hercules Credit Facility were secured by a security interest and amended
to a second security interest under the Amended Hercules Credit Facility on substantially all the Company’s assets
except for intellectual property and other restricted property.

In August 2020, the Company made the repayment in full of its obligations of $10.3 million under the
Hercules Credit Facility, as amended, including principal and accrued interest. The Hercules Credit Facility was
terminated upon payoff and the remaining unamortized debt issuance cost and debt discounts of $0.2 million were
recorded to interest expense.

Senior Credit Facility

In May 2019, the Company entered into a Loan, Guaranty and Security Agreement for a senior secured
asset-based lending facility (“Senior Credit Facility”) with borrowing capacity up to $75.0 million. The commitment
under the Senior Credit Facility is available to the Company on a revolving basis through the earlier of May 2024
or 91 days prior to the stated maturity of any subordinated debt in aggregate amount of $7.5 million or more. The
maximum availability under the Senior Credit Facility is based on certain specified percentages of eligible accounts
receivable and inventory, subject to certain reserves, to be determined in accordance with the Senior Credit Facility.
The commitment under the Senior Credit Facility includes a $10.0 million letter of credit sub-line. Subject to certain
conditions, the commitment may be increased by $50.0 million upon approval by the lender, and at the Company’s
option, the commitment can be reduced to $25.0 million or terminated upon at least 15 days written notice.
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The Senior Credit Facility is secured by a security interest in substantially all of the Company’s assets except
for intellectual property and other restricted property.

Borrowings under the Senior Credit Facility bear interest at per annum rates equal to, at the Company’s
option, either (i) the base rate plus an applicable margin for base rate loan, or (ii) the London Interbank Offered
Rate (“LIBOR”) plus an applicable margin for LIBOR loan. The base rate is calculated as the greater of (a) the
Lender prime rate, (b) the federal funds rate plus 0.5%, and (c) one-month LIBOR plus 1.0%. The applicable margin
is calculated based on a pricing grid linked to quarterly average excess availability (as a percentage of borrowing
capacity). For base rate loans, the applicable margin ranges from 0.0% to 1.5%, and for LIBOR Loans, it ranges
from 1.5% to 3.0%. The Senior Credit Facility contains certain customary non-financial covenants. In addition, the
Senior Credit Facility requires the Company to maintain a Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio of at least 1.00:1.00 during
such times as a covenant trigger event shall exist.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the outstanding balance under the Senior Credit Facility was $17.1 million
and $15.3 million, respectively, with maturity of May 2024. The Company incurred approximately $0.4 million debt
issuance costs under this facility, and will amortize these costs to interest expense over the borrowing term. The
interest rate was 3.09% and 4.89% per annum as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Small Business Administration Loan

In May 2020, the Company received Small Business Administration (“SBA”) loan proceeds of $10.0 million
from Town Center Bank pursuant to the Paycheck Protection Program (“the PPP loan”) under the “Coronavirus
Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act”. The PPP loan was in the form of a note and matures on May 6,
2022. The interest rate is 1.00% per annum and payable monthly commencing in December 2020. All or a portion
of the PPP loan may be forgiven by the SBA upon application with supporting documentation of expenditures in
accordance with SBA requirements, which include employees being kept on the payroll for eight weeks after the date
of the loan and the proceeds being used for payroll, rent, mortgage interest, or utilities.

Convertible Notes

In August 2020, the Company entered into a Note Purchase Agreement for Secured Convertible Promissory
Notes (“Convertible Notes”). The Convertible Notes have an aggregate principal amount of $200.0 million, with a
cash interest of 5.0% per annum payable at each quarter end and a paid-in-kind interest of 4.5% per annum payable
by increasing the principal balance at each quarter end. The Convertible Notes will mature in August 2025, and the
Company may not make prepayment unless approved by the required holders of the Convertible Notes.

At or after an underwritten initial public offering in which the Company receives gross proceeds of not less
than $100 million (“QIPO”), or at the time of a merger, acquisition or other combination between the Company and
a publicly-traded special purpose acquisition company (“SPAC transaction”), the holders may elect to convert the
Convertible Notes into shares of common stock.

At the next bona fide equity financing following the Note Purchase Agreement, or 36 months after the date of
the Note Purchase Agreement if no such equity financing shall have occurred (a “Qualified Financing”), the holders
may elect to convert the Convertible Notes into shares of the most senior series of the Company’s preferred stock.

The conversion price will be an amount equal to:

i) if'the conversion stock is being issued at or following a QIPO, the QIPO price per share multiplied by
the Discount Coefficient (as defined in the Convertible Notes), which is initially equal to 90% and will
decrease by 2.75% every 6 months following the first anniversary of the closing date of the Convertible
Notes, in effect on the date of QIPO (the “QIPO Conversion Price”); or
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ii)  if the conversion stock is being issued following a Qualified Financing, 75% of the lowest per share cash
purchase price of the common stock or preferred stock sold by the Company in the Qualified Financing;
or

iii)  if the conversion stock is being issued following a SPAC transaction, 75% of the SPAC Transaction Price
Per Share (as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement) (the “SPAC Conversion Price”).

The Convertible Notes will automatically be converted into common stock at any time after the expiration of
the lock-up period of a QIPO or SPAC transaction, if the following conditions are met:

. if the QIPO price per share equals or exceeds $6.9075, then upon the volume-weighted average
price of the Company’s publicly-traded common stock over a period of 20 consecutive trading days
exceeds 150% of the QIPO Conversion Price; or if the QIPO price per share is lower than $6.9075,
then upon the volume-weighted average price of the Company’s publicly-traded common stock over a
period of 20 consecutive trading days exceeds 150% of an amount equal to $6.9075 multiplied by the
Discount Coefficient at the time of the QIPO.

. if the SPAC Transaction Price Per Share equals or exceeds $6.9075, then upon the volume-weighted
average price of the Company’s publicly-traded common stock over a period of 20 consecutive trading
days commencing after the six month anniversary of the closing of the SPAC transaction exceeding
150% of the SPAC Conversion Price; or if the SPAC Transaction Price Per Share is lower than $6.9075,
then upon volume-weighted average price of the Company’s publicly-traded common stock over a period
of 20 consecutive trading days commencing after the six month anniversary of the closing of the SPAC
transaction and over which the Conversion Stock would be freely tradable exceeding 175% of an amount
equal to $6.9075 multiplied by 75%.

Each of the Convertible Notes shall rank equally without preference or priority of any kind over one another,
but senior in all rights, privileges and preferences to all other shares of the Company’s capital stock and all other
securities of the Company that are convertible into or exercisable for the Company’s capital stock directly or
indirectly.

Prior to the maturity date or prior to the payment or conversion of the entire balance of the Convertible Notes,
in the event of a liquidation or sale of the Company, the Company shall pay to the holders of Convertible Notes the
greater of (i) 150% of the principal balance of the Convertible Notes or (ii) the consideration that the holders would
have received had the holders elected to convert the Convertible Notes into preferred stock immediately prior to such
liquidation event.

The Convertible Notes do not entitle the holders to any voting rights or other rights as a stockholder of the
Company, unless and until the Convertible Notes are actually converted into shares of the Company’s capital stock in
accordance with their terms.

The Note Purchase Agreement contains certain customary non-financial covenants. In addition, the Note
Purchase Agreement requires the Company to maintain liquidity at quarter end of not less than the greater of
(1) $75.0 million and (ii) four times of cash burn for the three-month period then ended.

In connection with the issuance of the Convertible Notes, the Company issued warrants to the holders of
Convertible Notes to purchase 5.1 million shares of Company stock at an exercise price of $0.01 per share. The stock
issuable upon exercise of the warrants shall be (1) common stock, or (2) in the event that a QIPO has not occurred
within five years of the Note Purchase Agreement or in the event of a liquidation or sale of the Company, the most
senior series of the Company’s convertible preferred stock (or in the event that the Company is consolidated or
merges with one or more other corporations, the stock that the holder of the warrant would have been entitled to
receive if holder would have exercised the warrant prior to such event). The warrants are exercisable for 7 years, and
will be automatically exercised in the event of a change of control transaction or the expiration of the warrants.
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The warrants are freestanding financial instruments and classified as liability due to the possibility that they
can become exercisable into convertible preferred stock. The warrant liability of $29.0 million is initially measured
at fair value on its issuance date and recorded as a debt discount, and will be amortized during the term of the
Convertible Notes to interest expense using the effective-interest method. The warrant liability will be remeasured on
a recurring basis at each reporting period date, with the change in fair value reported in the statement of operations.

The embedded features are composed of conversion options that have the economic characteristics of a
contingent early redemption feature settled in a variable number of shares of Company stock. These conversion
options are bifurcated and accounted for separately from the host debt instrument. The derivative liability of
$68.5 million was initially measured at fair value on the issuance date of the Convertible Notes and recorded
as a debt discount and will be amortized during the term of the Convertible Notes to interest expense using the
effective-interest method. The derivative liability will be remeasured on a recurring basis at each reporting period
date, with the change in fair value reported in the statement of operations.

The issuance costs of $5.1 million were recorded as debt discount and will be amortized during the term of the
Convertible Notes to interest expense using the effective interest method. The amortization expense of debt discount
and issuance costs was $5.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2020.

The Convertible Notes will mature in August 2025 or will be settled by issuing equity stock, and accordingly
are classified as a non-current liability on the Company’s balance sheets. As of December 31, 2020, the Convertible
Notes, net of debt discount and issuance costs, consisted of the following (in thousands):

Principal . ... $ 200,000
PIK N ErESt . . o ottt 3,501
Total principal. . . . ... 203,501
Less debt discount and iSSUANCE COSES . . . .ot vttt et et e e (97,058)
Total Convertible NOTES . .. ...ttt e $ 106,443

As of December 31, 2020, the contractual future principal repayments of the total debt were as follows (in
thousands):

20 $ 10,000
2024, e 17,074
20250 203,501
TOtAl © ot $ 230,575

(1)  Including PIK interest added to principal balance through December 31, 2020.

The Company was in compliance with all of the covenants contained in the Senior Credit Facility and
Convertible Notes as of December 31, 2020.

6. Leases

The Company adopted the new lease accounting standard on January 1, 2020 using the modified retrospective
transition method, recognizing a cumulative-effect adjustment to the balance sheet and not adjusting comparative
information for prior periods. In addition, the Company elected the package of practical expedients permitted under
the transition guidance, which allowed the Company not to reassess (1) whether any expired or existing contracts are
or contain leases, (2) lease classification for any expired or existing leases, and (3) initial direct costs for any existing
leases. The Company did not elect the use of hindsight practical expedients in determining the lease term for existing
leases. Topic 842 also provides practical expedients for an entity’s ongoing accounting. The Company has elected
the short-term lease recognition exemption for all leases that qualify. As a result, for those leases with a term of less
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than 12 months, it will not recognize right-of-use assets or lease liabilities. The Company also elected the practical
expedient to not separate lease and non-lease components for all its leases regardless of whether the Company is the
lessee or a lessor to the lease.

The adoption resulted in a recognition of $13.8 million of operating lease assets and $14.3 million of operating
lease liabilities on the balance sheet on January 1, 2020. The difference represents prepaid rent expense and deferred
rent for leases existed on the date of adoption, which was an offset to the opening balance of operating lease assets.
The adoption has no impact on the Company’s operating expenses and cash flows.

As a Lessor
The net investment in leases are as follows:

December 31,

2020 2019
Net investment in leases, CUrrent .. ..............uuiuininunnnnnnen... $ 398 $ 343
Net investment in leases, NON-CUITENt. . . . ... ... .ottt 3,101 3,809
Total net investment in 1€ases . . .. ... ...t $ 3,499 $§ 4,152

Interest income from accretion of net investment in lease is not material.

In the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company assigned one operating lease and three sales-type leases.
The Company received a total of $3.7 million in cash, and recorded $0.9 million in product revenue for the assigned
operating lease, and an aggregate loss of assignment of $1.2 million for the sales-type leases in the other expense
(income), net on the statement of operations.

Future minimum payments receivable from operating and sales-type leases as of December 31, 2020 for each
of the next five years are as follows:

Operating leases Sales-type leases
202 L. $ 726 $ 395
202, 105 395
2023, 105 296
2024, 105 135
202 105 408
Thereafter ... ... .. 222 2,282
Total minimum lease payments. . ... .........ouuerirneeinnennnn... $ 1,368 § 3,911

As a Lessee

The Company leases its office and manufacturing facilities in Burlingame, California, Greenville, South
Carolina, City of Industry, California, and Rochester Hills, Michigan under operating lease agreements with various
expiration dates through 2026.

In June 2018, the Company entered into an agreement to sublease its office facilities in Rochester Hills,
Michigan from July 2018 to October 2023. The total sublease payments are approximately $2.3 million for the lease
term. The sublease income is recorded in the other expense (income), net on the statement of operations.

The Company had no material capital leases as of December 31, 2020.
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Maturities of operating lease liabilities as of December 31, 2020 were as follows (in thousands):

202 e $ 3,622
202, 3,133
2023, 2,300
2024, e 1,648
2025, e 1,039
Thereafter . . ... 443
Total undiscounted lease payment . ... .......... . .ttt 12,185
Less: IMPuted INTETeSt. . . . o oottt ettt e e e e e (1,141)
Total lease HabiltIES . . . . . o oottt $ 11,044

Future minimum payments for noncancellable operating leases, based on previous lease accounting standard,
as of December 31, 2019 were as follows (in thousands):

2020, « $ 3,912
202 e 3,619
202, 3,128
2023, 2,300
202, 1,648
Thereafter . . ... . 1,482
Total minimum 1ease PAYMENLS. . . . . . .ottt ettt et e et e 16,089
Less proceeds from sublease rental. . . ........ .. . (1,853)
Net operating lease obligation. . . ... ... it $ 14,236

Operating lease expense was $4.0 million, $3.4 million, and $3.1 million for the years ended December 31,
2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Short-term and variable lease expenses for the year ended December 31, 2020 were not significant.

Supplemental cash flow information related to leases were as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,
2020
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:
Operating cash flows from operating leases. ... ............o .. (3,855)

In the year ended December 31, 2020, the cash flow from financing leases and right-of-use assets obtained in
exchange for lease obligations were not significant.

Operating lease right-of-use assets and liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2020
Operating leases
Operating lease right-0f-use assetS . . . . ... ...t $ 10,310
Operating lease liabilities, current . . ... ........ ... .. i $ 3,153
Operating lease liabilities, NON-CUITENt. . . . .. .. ...ttt et 7,891
Total operating lease Habilities . . . ... ... . it e $ 11,044

The weighted average remaining lease term and discount rate of operating leases are 4.0 years and 4.9%,
respectively, as of December 31, 2020.

As of December 31, 2020, the Company had no significant additional operating leases and finance leases that
have not yet commenced.
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Purchase Commitments

As of December 31, 2020, the Company had outstanding inventory and other purchase commitments of
$215.7 million.

Letters of Credit

As of December 31, 2020, the Company had letters of credit outstanding totaling $0.5 million, which will
expire over various dates in 2021.

Guarantees

The Company provides guarantees of lease payments for vehicles under the financing transaction discussed in
Note 4, in the event the lessee does not make payments to the financing company.

The Company regularly reviews its performance risk under the arrangement, and in the event that it becomes
probable that it will be required to perform under a guarantee, the fair value of probable payment will be recorded.
No guarantee liability was recorded as of December 31, 2020 and 2019.

Legal Proceedings

The Company accrues contingent liabilities when it is probable that future expenditures will be made and
such expenditures can be reasonably estimated. From time to time in the normal course of business, various claims
and litigation have been asserted or commenced. Due to uncertainties inherent in litigation and other claims,
the Company can give no assurance that it will prevail in any such matters, which could subject the Company to
significant liability or damages. Any claims or litigation could have an adverse effect on the Company’s business,
financial position, operating results, or cash flows in or following the period that claims or litigation are resolved.

As of December 31, 2020, the Company was not a party to any legal proceedings that would have a material
adverse effect on its business.

8. Convertible Preferred Stock

In August and September 2019, the Company completed a private placement and issuance of a total of
10,857,762 shares of Series 8 convertible preferred stock at $6.9075 per share for proceeds of $74.8 million, net
of issuance costs of approximately $0.2 million. In October 2019, the Company completed an additional private
placement and issuance of 1,719,145 shares of Series 8 convertible preferred stock at $6.9075 per share for gross
proceeds of $11.9 million.

In June 2018, the Company completed the private placement and issuance of a total of 15,307,518 shares of
Series 7 convertible preferred stock at $6.526419 per share for proceeds of $98.8 million, net of issuance costs of
approximately $1.1 million. In September 2018, the Company completed the private placement and issuance of a
total of 8,442,102 additional shares of Series 7 convertible preferred stock at $6.526419 per share for proceeds of
$53.0 million, net of issuance costs of approximately $2.1 million.

In January 2018, the Company completed an additional private placement and issuance of 4,512,743 shares
of Series 6 convertible preferred stock at $5.539864 per share for proceeds of $24.9 million, net of issuance costs of
$0.1 million. The $5.0 million prepayment for the sale of Series 6 convertible preferred stock, which was recorded as
a non-current liability as of December 31, 2017, was converted to equity upon closing of this transaction.
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The following table summarizes convertible preferred stock authorized and issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019:

Shares Issued Aggregate

Shares and Net Carrying Liquidation

Authorized Outstanding Value Preference

(in thousands)

Series 1M . .. ... ... 27,567,694 27,476,120 $ 79,564 $ 75,006
Series 2 ..o 6,069,073 6,069,073 24,868 24,953
Series 3 .. ..o 7,617,704 7,617,704 36,096 36,475
Series4 ..o 9,159,674 8,682,155 29,901 30,000
Series S ... .. 28,391,526 28,391,526 138,747 142,987
Series6 ... 14,440,784 14,440,784 79,085 80,000
Series 7 ..ot 23,749,620 23,749,620 151,770 155,000
Series 8 .. ..o 12,576,907 12,576,907 86,648 86,875
Total ..... .. . 129,572,982 129,003,889 $ 626,679 $ 631,296

(1)  Including Series 1 convertible preferred stock issued through exercise of warrants to purchase 197,315 shares. The
proceeds from exercise of the warrants was $0.5 million.

The rights, preferences, and privileges of the convertible preferred stock are as follows:

Dividends

The holders of convertible preferred stock are entitled to receive noncumulative dividends equal to 8% of the
original issue price per share, when and if declared by the board of directors, prior and in preference to dividends on
common stock. The holders of convertible preferred stock are also entitled to participate in dividends on common
stock held on an as-if converted basis. No dividends on convertible preferred stock or common stock had been
declared by the board of directors as of December 31, 2020.

Conversion Rights

Each share of convertible preferred stock is convertible at the option of the holder into shares of common
stock at any time. The conversion rate for convertible preferred stock is equal to the quotient obtained by dividing
the applicable original issue price by the applicable conversion price in effect at the time of conversion. The original
issue price for the Series 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8 convertible preferred stock is $2.729862, $4.11146, $4.78821,
$3.45536, $5.03624, $5.539864, $6.526419, and $6.9075 per share, respectively, as adjusted for stock splits,
stock dividends, combinations, subdivisions, recapitalizations, or similar transactions. The conversion price of the
Series 1, 2, 3,4, 5, 6, 7, and 8 convertible preferred stock is $2.729862, $4.01068, $4.58348, $3.45536, $5.03624,
$5.539864, $6.526419, and $6.9075 per share, respectively, as adjusted for certain dilutive issuances, splits and
combinations.

Each share of convertible preferred stock automatically converts into shares of common stock at the
then-effective conversion price upon the Company’s sale of its common stock in a firm commitment underwriting
pursuant to a registration statement filed under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, at an aggregate public
offering price of not less than $50.0 million. In addition, all shares of convertible preferred stock (other than the
Series 7 preferred stock and Series 8 preferred stock) will automatically convert into shares of common stock upon a
vote by the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of convertible preferred stock voting together as a single
class on an as-converted basis; the Series 7 preferred stock may not be converted without the vote or written consent
of the holders of at least a majority of the then outstanding shares of Series 7 convertible preferred stock and the
Series 8 preferred stock may not be converted without the vote or written consent of the holders of at least a majority
of the then outstanding shares of Series 8 convertible preferred stock.
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In the event that the initial offering price to the public (prior to any underwriting discount), under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, at an aggregate public offering price of not less than $50.0 million (IPO), is less
than the original issuance price of the Series 8 convertible preferred stock, the conversion price of the Series 8 shall
be adjusted to the higher of the IPO price or the original issuance price of the Series 7 convertible preferred stock.

Voting Rights

Holders of convertible preferred stock have voting rights equal to the number of shares of common stock into
which their respective convertible preferred shares are then convertible. Holders of convertible preferred stock, as a
separate class, voting on an as-converted basis, shall be entitled to elect seven directors of the Company. Holders of
the common stock, as a separate class, shall be entitled to elect one director of the Company. The holders of common
stock and convertible preferred stock, voting together as a single class on an as-converted basis, shall be entitled to
elect the remaining number of directors of the Company.

Liquidation Preferences

In the event of a liquidation or sale of the Company, either voluntary or involuntary, distributions to the
stockholders shall be made in the following manner: the holders of Series 8 preferred stock shall be entitled, before
holders of other series of preferred stock and before holders of common stock, to an amount per share equal to the
greater of (1) the original issue price of Series 8 preferred stock plus any declared but unpaid dividends and (2) the
amount that would have been payable had all shares of Series 8 preferred stock been converted into common stock
immediately prior to such event. After payment to the holders of Series 8 preferred stock, the holders of Series 7
preferred stock shall be entitled, before holders of other series of preferred stock, an amount per share equal to the
greater of (1) the original issue price of Series 7 preferred stock plus any declared but unpaid dividends and (2) the
amount that would have been payable had all shares of Series 7 preferred stock been converted into common stock
immediately prior to such event. After payment to the holders of Series 8 and Series 7 preferred stock, the holders
of Series 5 and 6 convertible preferred stock then outstanding shall be entitled, on a pari passu basis, an amount per
share equal to the greater of (1) the applicable original issue price for such series of convertible preferred stock plus
any declared but unpaid dividends and (2) the amount that would have been payable had all shares of such series
convertible preferred stock been converted into common stock immediately prior to such event. After payment to
the holders of Series 8, Series 7, and Series 5 and 6 convertible preferred stock, the holders of Series 1, 2, 3, and 4
convertible preferred stock then outstanding shall be entitled, on a pari passu basis, an amount per share equal to
the greater of (1) the applicable original issue price for such series of convertible preferred stock plus any declared
but unpaid dividends and (2) the amount that would have been payable had all shares of such series convertible
preferred stock been converted into common stock immediately prior to such event. After payment of all preferential
amounts required to be paid to the holders of convertible preferred stock, the remaining funds and assets available
for distribution shall be distributed among the holders of common stock, pro rata based on the number of shares of
common stock held.

Redemption

Convertible preferred stock is not redeemable by the Company or at the option of the preferred stockholders.
Convertible Preferred Stock Warrants

Warrants for Series 4 Preferred Stock

In May 2016, in connection with the first amendment to the Hercules Credit Facility, the Company issued
warrants to purchase an additional 79,587 shares of Series 4 convertible preferred stock to Hercules at an exercise
price of $3.45536 per share, subject to certain adjustments. The warrants expire at the earlier of May 2023 and three
years from the Company’s qualified initial public offering.
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8. Convertible Preferred Stock (cont.)

During 2015, the Company issued warrants to purchase 397,932 shares of Series 4 convertible preferred stock
to Hercules at an exercise price of $3.45536 per share, subject to certain adjustments. The warrants expire in the
earlier of May 2022 or three years from the Company’s qualified initial public offering.

Warrants for Series 1 Preferred Stock

In each of October 2011 and March 2012, the Company issued warrants to purchase 45,787 shares of Series
1 convertible preferred stock at an exercise price of $2.729862 per share to a bank in connection with a debt
arrangement. The warrants expire in October 2021.

The warrants for Series 1 and Series 4 convertible preferred stock are recorded as a warrant liability included
in other long-term liabilities on the balance sheets prior to January 1, 2018.

The Company adopted ASU No. 2017-11, Earnings per Share (Topic 260); Distinguishing Liabilities from
Equity (Topic 480),; Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815) on January 1, 2018, and reclassified its warrant liability of
$0.6 million to additional paid-in capital upon adoption. As of December 31, 2020, a total of 569,093 shares of the
Series 1 and Series 4 convertible preferred stock warrants were outstanding.

9. Common Stock

As of December 31, 2020, the Company was authorized to issue 304,672,982 shares of capital stock with
a par value of $0.0001 per share. The authorized shares consisted of 175,100,000 shares of common stock and
129,572,982 shares of convertible preferred stock. There were 6,361,952 shares and 4,400,247 shares of common
stock issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

The Company had reserved shares of common stock, on an as-if-converted basis, for issuance as follows:

December 31,

2020 2019
Exercise of stock options to purchase common stock. .. ................... 26,359,796 20,401,985
Exercise of common stock warrants to purchase common stock . ............ 5,149,716 117,630
Issuances of shares available under stock optionplans. .................... 442,891 2,362,407
Conversion of convertible preferred stock . ........ ... ... ... ... . ... 129,496,639 129,496,639
Conversion of convertible preferred stock warrants. . ..................... 569,093 569,093
Total ..o 162,018,135 152,947,754

Common Stock Warrants

In August 2020, in connection with the issuance of Convertible Notes, the Company issued warrants to
purchase 5,112,086 shares of common stock to purchasers of the Convertible Notes. The warrants have an exercise
price of $0.01 per share. The stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants shall be (1) common stock, or (2) in the
event that a QIPO has not occurred within five years of the Note Purchase Agreement or in the event of a liquidation
or sale of the Company, the most senior series of the Company’s preferred stock (or in the event that the Company
consolidated or merges with one or more other corporation, the stock that the holder of the warrant would have been
entitled to receive if holder would have exercised the warrant prior to such event). The warrants are exercisable for
7 years, and will be automatically exercised in the event of a change of control transaction or the expiration of the
warrants. These warrants are classified as liability in the balance sheets. Refer to Note 5 for further details.

In May 2019, in connection with the 2019 Amended Hercules Credit Facility, the Company issued to Hercules
a warrant to purchase 36,630 shares of common stock. The warrants have an exercise price of $5.46 per share, which
are exercisable for 10 years and will automatically exercise upon the initial public offering. See Note 5, Debt.

In the fourth quarter of 2020, 80,000 shares of the common stock warrants expired.
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10. Stock Option Plan

In 2010, the Company adopted the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”). The Plan provides for the
issuance of incentive stock options, non-statutory stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, and
restricted stock units. Non-statutory stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, and restricted stock
units may be granted to employees, directors, and consultants, but only employees may be granted incentive stock
options. No stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, or restricted stock units had been issued under the Plan as of
December 31, 2020.

The exercise price per share of all stock options granted under the Plan must equal at least 100% of the fair
market value per share of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant as determined by the board of directors.
If, at the time the Company grants an incentive stock option, the optionee owns stock representing more than 10% of
the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company, the exercise price per share must be at least
110% of the fair market value per share of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant and the stock options
will expire five years after the date of grant. Except as noted above, stock options expire no more than ten years after
the date of grant.

Generally, a terminated service provider may exercise stock options within three months of termination.
Awards that expire or are cancelled without delivery of shares generally become available for re-issuance under the
2010 Plan.

Stock option awards generally vest over a four-year period, with 25% vesting after one year from date of grant
and quarterly thereafter. Certain awards have shorter vesting periods.

During 2020, the board of directors approved an increase in the number of shares of common stock reserved
under the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan by 6,000,000 shares to 31,994,478 shares.

The shares available for grant under the Plan were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018
Balance at the beginning of period . .. ................... 2,362,407 3,627,104 2,751,406
Additional shares authorized. . ......................... 6,000,000 1,519,075 6,847,235
Granted . . ... ... . (10,281,875) (3,359,941) (7,312,022)
Repurchased .. ... ... ... .. .. . . . — 9,000 —
Cancelled/forfeited . . ........ ... ... .. 2,362,359 567,169 1,340,485
Balance at the ending of period . ....................... 442,891 2,362,407 3,627,104
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10. Stock Option Plan (cont.)
A summary of the Company’s stock option activity and related information was as follows:

Options Outstanding

Weighted-
Average
Number of Weighted- Remaining Aggregate

Stock Options Average Contractual Intrinsic Value

Outstanding Exercise Price Life (Years) (in thousands)
Balance as of December 31,2017........ 13,764,812  $ 1.67 83 $ 9,498
Granted . .......... ... ... . .. ... 7,312,022 4.11
Exercised.............. ... ... ..... (1,217,877) 1.60
Cancelled/forfeited/expired. . . .. ........ (1,340,485) 2.06
Balance as of December 31, 2018. ....... 18,518,472 $ 2.61 83 § 42951
Granted .. ........... ... .. ... ..., 3,359,941 5.23
Exercised. ............ ... ... ... ... (909,259) 1.90
Cancelled/forfeited/expired. .. ... ....... (567,169) 3.50
Balance as of December 31, 2019. . ... ... 20,401,985 $ 3.05 76 $ 34,723
Granted' ......... ... ... ... . .. ... 6,531,875 4.36
Exercised............. ... ... ... ..... (1,961,705) 2.14
Cancelled/forfeited/expired. . . .. ........ (2,362,359) 4.11
Balance as of December 31, 20200 . . .. .. 22,609,796 $ 3.40 74 3 65,056
Exercisable as of December 31, 2020. . . .. 12,637,973 $ 2.63 62 $ 46,004

(1)  Excluding CEO Equity Awards of 3,000,000 shares and Milestone Options of 750,000 shares, of which 562,500 shares
exercisable as of December 31, 2020. Refer to section below for further details.

In March 2020, in conjunction with Mr. Allen’s appointment as the President and Chief Executive Officer, the
board of directors approved a grant to Mr. Allen of stock option awards with respect to 5,250,000 shares, comprised
of (1) 1,500,000 shares of time-based award with an exercise price of $4.75 per share vesting quarterly over 4 years,
(2) 3,000,000 shares of time-based award consists of 4 tranches with an exercise price of $10, $15, $20 and $25 per
share, respectively, and vesting quarterly over 4 years (“Equity Awards”), and (3) 750,000 shares of milestone-based
award with exercise price of $4.75 per share will vest entirely and become exercisable on the first trading day
following the expiration of the lockup period of the Company’s initial public offering or the consummation of a
change in control of the Company (“Milestone Options”). The Milestone Options shall vest in full and became
exercisable upon the consummation of a merger involving a Special Purpose Acquisition Company.

The stock-based compensation expense for Milestone Options will be recognized at the time the performance
milestone becomes probable of achievement. No stock-based compensation expense related to the Milestone Options
was recognized as of December 31, 2020 as the performance condition was not considered probable of achievement.
The unrecognized stock-based compensation expense associated with the Milestone Options was $2.1 million on the
grant date and as of December 31, 2020.

The weighted average fair value of stock options granted, excluding the 3,000,000 shares underlying the
Equity Awards with exercise price of $10, $15, $20 or $25 per share and 750,000 shares underlying the Milestone
Options, was $3.13 per share for 2020. The weighted average fair value of stock options granted was $3.14 per share
for 2019 and $2.64 per share for 2018. Aggregate intrinsic value represents the difference between the estimated fair
value of the underlying common stock and the exercise price of outstanding, in-the-money stock options. The total
intrinsic value of stock options exercised was $4.3 million for 2020, $2.9 million for 2019 and $2.3 million for 2018.
The total estimated grant date fair value of stock options vested was $9.9 million for 2020, $8.3 million for 2019 and
$4.7 million for 2018. As of December 31, 2020, the total unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related
to outstanding stock options was $34.8 million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period
of 2.9 years.
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10. Stock Option Plan (cont.)
Determining Fair Value of Stock Options

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of stock options.
The fair value of each stock option grant is estimated on the date of the grant. The fair value of the common stock
underlying the stock options has historically been determined by the board of directors. There has been no public
market for the Company’s common stock. Therefore, the board of directors has determined the fair value of the
common stock at the time of the stock option grant by considering a number of objective and subjective factors
including independent third-party valuation reports, valuations of comparable companies, sales of convertible
preferred stock and common stock to unrelated third parties, operating and financial performance, lack of liquidity
of capital stock and general and industry-specific economic outlook, among other factors. The fair value of the
underlying common stock shall be determined by the board of directors until such time that the Company’s common
stock is listed on an established stock exchange or national market system.

The fair value of stock options granted is estimated on the date of grant using the following assumptions:

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018
Expected term (inyears). . .......ovvvernrnenennnnnn.. 6.1 6.1 6.0
Risk-free interestrate ... .. ... . 0.5% 1.8% 2.8%
Expected volatility .......... .. ... .. .. . . . ... 69.1% 65.4% 71.5%

Expected dividendrate . .. ......... ... .. ... ... ..., — — —

Expected Term — The Company estimates the expected term consistent with the simplified method. The
Company elected to use the simplified method because of its limited history of stock option exercise activity. The
simplified method calculates the expected term as the average of the vesting and contractual terms of the award.

Volatility — Since the Company has no trading history by which to determine the volatility of its own
common stock price, the expected volatility being used is derived from the historical stock volatility of a
representative industry peer group of comparable publicly listed companies over a period approximately equal to the
expected term of the stock options.

Risk-Free Interest Rate — The risk-free interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury zero coupon issues with
remaining terms similar to the expected term on the options.

Expected Dividend — The Company has never declared or paid any cash dividends and does not plan to pay
cash dividends in the foreseeable future, and, therefore, used an expected dividend yield of zero in the valuation
model.

Forfeiture — All stock-based payment awards are amortized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service
periods of the awards, which are generally the vesting periods. Under the ASU No. 2016-09, Compensation — Stock
Compensation: Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting, the Company elected to account for
forfeitures when they occur.

Stock-based Compensation Expense

Stock-based compensation expense included in operating results was as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018
Costofgoodssold. ........... ... .. ... $ 929 $ 826 $ 553
Research and development . ........................... 1,616 1,436 1,227
Selling, general and administrative. .. ................... 7,737 6,258 3,596
Total stock-based compensation expense . .. .............. $ 10,282 $ 8,520 $ 5,376
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11. Net Loss Per Share

Basic net loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss by the weighted-average number of shares
of common stock outstanding during the period, less the weighted-average unvested common stock subject to
repurchase or forfeiture as they are not deemed to be issued for accounting purposes. Diluted net loss per share
is computed by giving effect to all potential shares of common stock, including convertible preferred stock, stock
options, and warrants, to the extent they are dilutive.

The computation of basic and diluted net loss per share of common stock under the two-class method
attributable to common stockholders was as follows (in thousands, except for per share data):

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018
Numerator:
Net oSS . oot $ (127,007) $ (101,552) $ (91,622)
Denominator:
Weighted-average shares used in computing net loss per share
of common stock, basic and diluted . .. ................ 4,913 4,052 2,831
Net loss per share of common stock, basic and diluted . . .. .. $ (25.85) $ (25.06) $ (32.36)

We applied the two-class method to calculate its basic and diluted net loss per share of common stock, as the
convertible preferred stock are participating securities. The two-class method is an earnings allocation formula that
treats a participating security as having rights to earnings that otherwise would have been available to common stock
holders. However, the two-class method does not impact the net loss per share of common stock as we were in a loss
position for each of the periods presented and holders of convertible preferred stock do not have to participate in
losses.

Since we were in a loss position for each of the periods presented, diluted net loss per share is the same as
basic net loss per share for each period as the inclusion of all potential common stock shares outstanding would
have been anti-dilutive. The potentially dilutive securities that were excluded from the diluted per share calculation
because they would have been anti-dilutive were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018
Convertible preferred stock® .......................... 129,496,639 129,496,639 116,919,732
Warrants to purchase convertible preferred stock. . ......... 569,093 569,093 569,093
Stock options to purchase common stock. ................ 26,359,796 20,401,985 18,518,472
Warrants to purchase common stock .................... 5,149,716 117,630 81,000
Common stock subject to repurchase .. .................. — — 14,000

161,575,244 150,585,347 136,102,297

(1)  Represents the shares of common stock that the convertible preferred stock is convertible into.
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12. Income Tax

The components of the net loss before the provision for income taxes were as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018
DomestiC. . ..o $ (126,985) $ (101,552) $ (91,622)

The provision for income taxes consisted of the following (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018

Current:

Federal. . ... ... $ — 3 — S —

State. . oo e 13 — —

Foreign ... ... .. .. 9 — —
Total current provision . ... ...........couvenenennnnen.. 22 — —
Deferred:. . ... ..o — — —

Federal. .. ... ... ... . . — — —

State. . .o — — —

Foreign . ... ... .. . — — —
Total deferred provision . ............ ... ... ... .. .... — — —
Total provision for income taxes. ....................... $ 22 3 — 3 —

A reconciliation of the U.S. federal statutory income tax rates to our effective tax rate is as follows (in
percentages):

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018

U.S. federal statutoryrate .. ...............cconinon.... 21.0% 21.0% 21.0%
State income taxes, net of federal benefit. ... ............. 1.7 34 6.1
Change in valuation allowance . . . ...................... (17.5) (23.9) (27.0)
Research and development credit. . ..................... 0.2 0.3 0.6
Fair market adjustment . .. ......... .. .. .. ... .. .. ... ... (2.1) — —
Non-deductible Convertible Notes interest expense. . . . ... .. (2.2) — —
Other. . ... (1.1) (0.8) (0.7)
Effective income taxrate .............. ... ... ... ..... —% —% —%
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12. Income Tax (cont.)
Our deferred tax assets (liabilities) are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2020 2019
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards ... ........ ... i $ 113,643 $ 96,047
Deferred revenue. . . .. ...t 6,731 4,695
Stock-based compensation . ... .......... .. 3,560 2,509
Accruals and reserves, not currently deductible for tax purposes ............ 8,351 7,612
Research and development credit. . ........... ... .. .. ... 2,761 2,458
Goodwill . . .. 1,014 1,277
INterest EXPeNSe. . . o ottt 2,097 1,576
Lease liability . .. .. ..o 2,738 —
Other. .o 44 39
Gross deferred tax assets. . . ... ... 140,939 116,213
Less valuation allowance .................. ... (137,437) (115,175)
Net deferred tax assets . . ... ...ttt $ 3,502 $ 1,038
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment . .......... ... ... .. $ (1,008) $ (1,050)
ROU @SSCLS . ..ottt e e e e e e (2,494) —
Other. .o — 12
Gross deferred tax liabilities. . ... ...t (3,502) (1,038)
Net deferred tax asset (liabilities). ............ ... .. $ — § —

The net valuation allowance increased by $22.3 million and $24.3 million for 2020 and 2019, respectively.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company’s net deferred tax assets and liabilities were zero. The
deferred tax assets consist primarily of the federal and state net operating losses. Realization of deferred tax assets
is dependent upon future taxable income, if any, the amount and timing of which are uncertain. In assessing the
realizability of deferred tax assets, management determined that it is more likely than not that no deferred tax assets
will be realized. Therefore, the Company has provided a full valuation allowance against these deferred tax assets.

The Company had net operating loss carryforwards as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2020 2019
Federal (Prior to 2018) ... ...t $ 237,850 $ 237,850
Federal (Post December 31,2017) . ... 216,724 145,480
] 721 1< 317,801 272,029
Total .o $ 772,375 $ 655,359

Net operating loss carryforwards are available to offset future federal and state taxable income. The federal
net operating loss carryforwards generated prior to 2018 will begin to expire in 2030 and the net operating loss
carryforwards generated after December 31, 2017 do not expire. The state net operating loss carryforwards will
begin to expire in 2023.
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12. Income Tax (cont.)
The Company had research and development credit carryforwards as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2020 2019
Federal. . .. ..o $ 2,020 $ 1,728
State. . . 1,231 1,099
Total .. e $ 3,251 $ 2,827

The research and development credit carryforwards are available to reduce future regular income taxes.
The federal research and development credit carryforwards will begin to expire in 2037, while the South Carolina
research and development credit carryforwards will begin to expire in 2027. California research and development
credit carryforwards have no expiration date.

Utilization of the Company’s net operating loss carryforwards and research tax credit carryforwards may be
subject to substantial annual limitations due to the ownership change limitations provided by the Internal Revenue
Code and similar state provisions. The annual limitation could result in the expiration of the net operating loss
carryforwards and research tax credit carryforwards before utilization.

The Company’s policy is to recognize interest or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense.
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had no accrued interest or penalties. The unrecognized tax
benefits may change during the next year for items that arise in the ordinary course of business. In the event that any
unrecognized tax benefits are recognized, the effective tax rate will not be affected.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits for 2020, 2019 and 2018
was as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018
Beginning balance. . ......... ... ... ... ... .. ... ... $ 707 % 527 % 165
Increase — tax positions in current period. .. .............. 106 180 316
Increase — tax positions in prior periods. ... .............. — — 46
Endingbalance ............. ... ... ... ... ... ... .. ..., $ 813 § 707 % 527

The Company files tax returns in the United States and certain states. Due to the losses being carried forward,
the tax years from 2011 forward remain open to examination.

In March 2020, the “Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act” was signed into law. The
CARES Act includes provisions relating to refundable payroll tax credits, deferment of the employer portion of
certain payroll taxes, net operating loss carryback periods, alternative minimum tax credit refunds, modifications
to the net interest deduction limitations and technical corrections to tax depreciation methods for qualified
improvement property. These provisions are not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s financial
statements.

13. 401(k) Plan

The Company sponsors a 401(k) defined contribution plan covering all eligible employees and provides
matching contribution for the first 4% of their salaries. The matching contribution costs incurred were $1.9 million,
$1.7 million, and $1.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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14. Subsequent Events

On January 11, 2021, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (“Merger Agreement”)
with ArcLight Clean Transition Corp., a publicly traded special purpose acquisition company (“SPAC”) and Cayman
Islands exempted company (“ArcLight”) and Phoenix Merger Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of ArcLight (“Phoenix Merger Sub”).

At the closing, ArcLight will become a Delaware corporation, and Phoenix Merger Sub will merge with and
into Proterra, with Proterra as the surviving company and continuing as a wholly-owned subsidiary of ArcLight.
ArcLight’s name will be changed to Proterra Inc (“New Proterra”).

Upon closing of the merger,

. Proterra’s outstanding convertible preferred stock of 129,003,889 shares will convert into
129,496,639 shares of common stock. Each share of Proterra common stock (including shares issuable
upon conversion of Proterra convertible preferred stock) will be converted into the right to receive
0.8925 shares of New Proterra Common Stock, as a result of applying the Exchange Ratio;

. each Proterra option will be converted into an option to purchase shares of New Proterra Common Stock
by multiplying the number of underlying shares by the exchange ratio, rounded down to the nearest whole
share; the exercise price of each converted option will be determined by dividing the per share exercise
price of the respective Proterra options by the Exchange Ratio, rounded up to the nearest whole cent;

. each Proterra warrant to purchase common stock and convertible preferred stock will be converted into
a warrant to purchase shares of New Proterra Common Stock by multiplying the number of underlying
shares by the Exchange Ratio, rounded down to the nearest whole share; the exercise price of each
converted warrant will be determined by dividing the per share exercise price of the respective Proterra
warrant by the Exchange Ratio, rounded up to the nearest whole cent;

. each outstanding Convertible Note that was not optionally converted immediately prior to the
consummation of the merger will remain outstanding and become convertible into shares of New
Proterra Common Stock in accordance with the terms of such Convertible Notes.

In the event that the closing sale price of New Proterra common stock exceeds certain price thresholds for 20
out of any 30 consecutive trading days or in any transaction resulting in a change in control with a valuation of the
New Proterra Common Stock exceeds certain price thresholds during the first five years following the closing of the
merger, up to an additional 22,809,500 shares of New Proterra Common Stock may be issued to holders of Proterra
convertible preferred stock, common stock, warrants, vested options and Convertible Notes as of immediately prior
to the closing of the merger.

In connection with the merger, ArcLight entered into subscription agreements with certain investors (“PIPE
Investors™) to purchase an aggregate of 41.5 million shares of New Proterra common stock, immediately following
the closing of merger, at a purchase price of $10.00 per share, for aggregate gross proceeds of $415.0 million (“PIPE
Financing”).

In connection with the execution of the Merger Agreement, ArcLight entered into the Sponsor Letter
Agreement with the ArcLight Sponsor providing that 10% of the New Proterra Common Stock received by Sponsor
upon consummation of the merger in exchange for its outstanding shares of ArcLight class B ordinary shares,
excluding 140,000 shares owned by ArcLight board of directors, will be subject to vesting and forfeiture.

ArcLight public shareholders have rights to redeem their shares for cash upon the closing of the merger. The
Merger Agreement includes as a condition to close the merger that, at the closing of the merger, ArcLight will have a
minimum of $350.0 million of funds, net of any unpaid liabilities.

We have evaluated subsequent events through April 7, 2021.
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Authority’s RFP 21-980369.
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2. Three Most Recent Audited Financial Statements
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors
Proterra Inc:

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Proterra Inc (the Company) as of December 31, 2020 and
2019, the related statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes (collectively, the financial statements). In our opinion, the
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31,
2020 and 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2020, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in note 2 to the financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for leases
as of January 1, 2020 due to the adoption of Accounting Standards Codification Topic 842, Leases.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered
with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent
with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB and in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement,
whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to
those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ KPMG LLP
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2012.

Santa Clara, California
April 7, 2021
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PROTERRA INC
BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

December 31,

2020 2019

Assets:

Cashand cashequivalents. . ........... .. .. ... .. $ 110,719 $ 40,240
Accounts receivable, Net. . ... ... ... 51,716 44,500
Short-term INVESTMENTS . . . . . ..ottt 68,990 39,877
INVeNtOTY . . . ot 92,330 94,042
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .. .................... .. ...... 7,455 6,684
Deferred costof goodssold ........ ... ... . 2,037 1,240
Restricted cash, current. ... ... .. ... . .. 8,397 5,970
Total CUITENt @SSELS . . . . vt et et e e e e e 341,644 232,553
Property, plant, and equipment,net ........... .. .. ... ... 53,587 47,515
Operating lease right-of-use assets. . ........... ... ... ... 10,310 —
Restricted cash, non-current . . ... ... .t 4,581 7,439
Other @SSetS. . . oo\t 4,789 6,366
TOtal @SSELS . . . v v ottt $ 414911 $ 293,873
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity:

Accounts payable . . ... $ 25,074 $ 37,865
Accrued liabilities. . . ... .. . 19,736 14,635
Deferred revenue, current. . .......... ... ... 16,015 10,358
Operating lease liabilities, current .. ........... .. .. .. ... oiiiiiina... 3,153 —
Debt, current. . . ... — —
Total current liabilities . .. ... .. 63,978 62,858
Debt, NON-CUITENt . . . . .. 133,252 24,574
Derivative liability. . . .. ... . 70,870 —
Warrant liability .. ... 39,670 —
Deferred revenue, non-current . ... .......... ...t 12,206 8,264
Operating lease liabilities, non-current. . . ..., 7,891 —
Other long-term liabilities. . ... ... ... . i 12,578 11,198
Total liabilities. . . . . .. ... 340,445 106,894

Commitments and contingencies (Note 7)
Stockholders’ equity:

Convertible preferred stock, $0.0001 par value; 129,572,982 shares authorized
and 129,003,889 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2020 and
2019; liquidation preference $631.3 million as of December 31, 2020 and
2000, 13 13

Common stock, $0.0001 par value; 175,100,000 shares authorized and

6,361,952 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2020;
170,000,000 shares authorized and 4,400,247 shares issued and outstanding

as of December 31,2019 ... ... ... .. . . . 1 —
Additional paid-incapital . . ........ .. .. .. .. 682,671 668,178
Accumulated deficit . ....... ... (608,219) (481,212)
Total stockholders’ equity . ... ...ttt 74,466 186,979
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . ........... ... ... ... oo, $ 414911 $ 293,873

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PROTERRA INC
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018

Productrevenue. . ...............co i .. $ 190,411 $ 172,295 $ 119,314
Parts and other servicerevenue. . .. ..................... 6,532 8,989 3,896
Total TeVeNUE. . . ... oot 196,943 181,284 123,210
Product cost of goods sold . .......... ... ... ... .. ... 181,987 173,428 130,660
Parts and other service cost of goodssold ................ 7,417 9,467 3,767
Total costof goodssold ........... .. ... ... ... ...... 189,404 182,895 134,427
Gross profit (10SS) . . ..o oo 7,539 (1,611) (11,217)
Research and development . ........................... 36,233 35,477 31,504
Selling, general and administrative. .. ................... 67,139 56,132 46,343
Asset impairment charge. . ......... .. .. .. . L. 121 6,440 —
Total operating eXpenses. . . . ... .vvven e et 103,493 98,049 77,847
Loss from operations. . . ..........oiiueninia. (95,954) (99,660) (89,064)
Interest expense, net . . ......... ... 15,413 2,704 3,476
Loss on valuation of derivative and warrant liabilities . . . . . .. 12,989 — —
Other expense (income), Net. ... ......oovvrinenennnn.. 2,629 (812) (918)
Loss before income taxes .. .........oovviiirenenennn... (126,985) (101,552) (91,622)
Provision for income taxes . ..................... ... ... 22 — —
Net 0SS . ottt $ (127,007) $ (101,552) $ (91,622)
Net loss per share of common stock, basic and diluted . . . . .. $ (25.85) $ (25.06) $ (32.36)
Shares used in computing net loss per share of common stock,

basicanddiluted .. ........ ... ... ... ... ... . ..., 4913 4,052 2,831

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PROTERRA INC
STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(in thousands)

Convertible
Preferred Stock Common Stock Additional Accumulated
Shares Amount  Shares Amount Paid-in Capital Deficit Total

Balance, December 31, 2017 . .. 88,165 $ 9 2282 $ — 3 386,541 $§ (288,038) $ 98,512
Adoption of accounting

standards . ................ — — — — 587 — 587
Issuance of stock, net of costs. . . 28,262 2 1,218 — 178,625 — 178,627
Stock-based compensation . . . . . — — — — 5,376 — 5,376
Netloss.........oovivinn... — — — — — (91,622) (91,622)
Balance, December 31, 2018 . .. 116,427 11 3,500 — 571,129 (379,660) 191,480
Issuance of stock, net of costs. . . 12,577 2 900 — 88,388 — 88,390
Issuance of warrants . .. ....... — — — — 141 — 141
Stock-based compensation . . . . . — — — — 8,520 — 8,520
Netloss.................... — — — — — (101,552) (101,552)
Balance, December 31, 2019 . .. 129,004 13 4,400 — 668,178 (481,212) 186,979
Issuance of stock, net of costs. . . — — 1,962 1 4,211 — 4,212
Stock-based compensation . . . .. — — — 10,282 — 10,282
Netloss.................... — — — — — (127,007) (127,007)
Balance, December 31, 2020 . . . 129,004 $ 13 6,362 $ 1 $ 682,671 $ (608,.219) $ 74,466

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PROTERRA INC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
Cash flows from operating activities:
Nt LOSS .« v ottt e $ (127,007) $ (101,552) $ (91,622)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization . . .............c.ouiinininain... 15,536 12,643 9,254
Loss on disposal of fixed assets . ............. .. ..., 143 527 793
Asset impairment charge. . .......... .. .. 121 6,440 —
Stock-based compensation . .. .......... .. i 10,282 8,520 5,376
Amortization of debt discount and issuance costs .. ................. 6,045 306 247
Accretion of debt end of term charge and PIK interest ............... 3,501 604 1,196
Loss on valuation of derivative and warrant liabilities. ............... 12,989 — —
Others . ... (153) (284) (335)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable .. ... ... (7,216) (9,005) (23,1906)
INVeNtOry . . . oot 2,182 (15,692) (23,642)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . ............. ... ........ (1,043) 563 (5,002)
Deferred cost of goods sold . ........ ... ... .. i (797) 4,207 (3,356)
Operating lease right-of-use assets and liabilities. . .................. 87 — —
Other @SSetS. . . vt v ettt e 1,575 (4,746) (718)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities .. .......... ... .. ... ..... (4,090) (1,025) 12,545
Deferred revenue, current and non-current. . .. ... .................. 9,599 132 11,780
Other non-current liabilities . ............. .. ... ... i ... 2,176 1,068 3,001
Net cash used in operating activities. . . .. ......oovvinernennenenn.. (76,070) (97,294) (103,679)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investments . ............. .. ..t (108,960) (71,817) (34,152)
Proceeds from maturities of investments .. ........................ 80,000 50,400 16,200
Purchase of property and equipment ............................. (25,565) (13,810) (16,698)
Net cash used in investing activities . . . .........ovuiinnaen.. (54,525) (35,227) (34,650)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from debt, net of issuance costs. .. ....................... 219,471 21,362 —
Repaymentofidebt .......... .. ... . . (22,787) (26,708) —
Repayment of finance obligation . ............ ... ... ... ....... (484) (452) (452)
Proceeds from government grants. . . .......... ... ... 275 522 1,507
Proceeds from exercise of stock options. .. ........................ 4,168 1,726 1,916
Proceeds from issuance of stock, net of issuance costs .. ............. — 86,746 173,659
Net cash provided by financing activities. ... ...................... 200,643 83,196 176,630
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents, and restricted cash . . 70,048 (49,325) 38,301
Cash and cash equivalents, and restricted cash at the beginning of period. . 53,649 102,974 64,673
Cash and cash equivalents, and restricted cash at the end of period. . . . . . $ 123,697 $ 53,649 $ 102,974
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid forinterest .. ......... .. ... .o, $ 5827 $ 4881 $ 2,648
Cash paid for inCome taxes. . .. ....ovven et 9 — —
Non-cash investing and financing activity:
Issuance of warrants in connection with debt borrowing . ............. $ — S 141 $ —
Assets acquired through accounts payable and accrued liabilities . . . . . .. 659 4,017 1,146
Non-cash transfer of vehicles from inventory to internal use. .......... — 967 —
Non-cash transfer of leased assets to inventory .. ................... 635 — —

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PROTERRA INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization and Description of Business

Proterra Inc (“Proterra” or the “Company”) is a leading developer and producer of electric vehicle technology
for commercial application. Proterra designs, develops, manufactures, and sells electric transit buses as an original
equipment manufacturer for North American public transit agencies, airports, universities, and other commercial
transit fleets. It also designs, develops, manufactures, sells, and integrates proprietary battery systems and
electrification solutions for global commercial vehicle manufacturers. Additionally, Proterra provides fleet-scale,
high-power charging solutions for our customers. Proterra was originally formed in June 2004 as a Colorado limited
liability company and converted to a Delaware corporation in February 2010. The Company operates from its
headquarters and battery production facility in Burlingame, California. The Company also has manufacturing and
product development facilities in Greenville, South Carolina and City of Industry, California.

The Company has incurred net losses and negative cash flows from operations since inception. As of
December 31, 2020, the Company has an accumulated deficit of $608.2 million, and $179.7 million of cash and cash
equivalents and short-term investments. The Company has funded operations primarily through a combination of
equity and debt financing. Management believes that the Company’s currently available resources will be sufficient
to fund its cash requirements for at least the next twelve months. However, there can be no assurance that future
financings will be successfully completed or completed on terms acceptable to the Company. These financial
statements do not include any adjustments that may result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Basis of Presentation

The Company prepared the financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (“U.S. GAAP”).

The Company has not experienced any significant impact to estimates or assumptions as a result of the
COVID-19 pandemic. We will continue to monitor impacts of the pandemic on an ongoing basis. While the
COVID-19 pandemic has not had a material adverse impact on our financial condition and results of operations to
date, the future impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our operational and financial performance will depend on
certain developments, including the duration and spread of the pandemic, impact on our customers and effect on
our suppliers, all of which are uncertain and cannot be predicted.

Segments

The Company operates in the United States and started to expand its business to the European Union in
2018 and Canada in 2019. The revenue generated outside of the United States was not material for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2019. The revenue generated outside of the United States was about 28% of total revenue or
$55.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2020, which was primarily generated from Canada.

The Company’s chief operating decision maker is its Chief Executive Officer (CEO), who reviews financial
information presented at the entity level. Accordingly, the Company has determined that it has a single reportable
segment.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires the use of estimates and
judgments that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements and accompanying notes. U.S. GAAP requires
the Company to make estimates and judgments in several areas including, but not limited to, those related to
revenue recognition, collectability of accounts receivable, valuation of inventories, valuation of Convertible Notes
(See Note 3), warranty liability, contingent liabilities, stock-based compensation expense, useful lives of property,
plant, and equipment, recoverability of assets, residual value of leased assets, and the valuation of deferred tax
assets. These estimates are based on historical facts and various other assumptions that the Company believes are
reasonable. Actual results could differ materially from those estimates.
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PROTERRA INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont.)
Foreign Currency Transactions

The U.S. dollar is the Company’s functional currency. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than the U.S. dollar are remeasured to the U.S. dollar at period end, and transaction gains and
losses are recorded in other expense (income), net in the statements of operations. Net gains or losses resulting from
foreign exchange transactions were not material for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2019. The net losses
resulting from foreign exchange transactions were $1.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with original maturities of three months or
less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Credit Losses

Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. The Company determines
the allowance for credit losses based on historical write-off experience, an analysis of the aging of outstanding
receivables, customer payment patterns and expectations of changes in macroeconomic conditions that may affect
the collectability of outstanding receivables. The allowance for credit losses was not material as of December 31,
2020 and 2019.

Short-Term Investments

The Company’s primary objectives for investment activities are to preserve principal, provide liquidity,
and maximize income without significantly increasing risk. The Company classifies its short-term investments
as available-for-sale at the time of purchase because it is intended that these investments are available for current
operations. Investments with maturities of one year or less from the balance sheet date are classified as short-term
investments.

Investments are reported at fair value and are subject to periodic impairment review. Unrealized gains and
losses related to changes in the fair value of these securities are recognized in accumulated other comprehensive
loss. The ultimate value realized on these securities is subject to market price volatility until they are sold. Realized
gains or losses from short-term investments are recorded in other expense (income), net.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, short-term investments were $69.0 million and $39.9 million,
respectively.

Restricted Cash

The Company maintains certain cash amounts restricted as to withdrawal or use. The restricted cash is
primarily collateral for performance bonds issued to certain customers. The collateral is provided in the form of a
cash deposit to either support the bond directly or to collateralize a letter of credit that supports the performance
bonds. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, restricted cash was $13.0 million and $13.4 million, respectively.

Credit Risk and Concentration

Our financial instruments that are potentially subject to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash,
cash equivalents, restricted cash, short-term investments, and accounts receivable. Cash and cash equivalents and
short-term investments are maintained primarily at two financial institutions, and deposits exceed federally insured
limits. Risks associated with cash and cash equivalents, and short-term investments are mitigated by banking with
creditworthy financial institutions. The Company has not experienced any losses on its deposits of cash and cash
equivalents or its short-term investments.
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PROTERRA INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont.)

Cash equivalents consist of short-term money market funds, corporate debt securities, and debt securities
issued by the U.S. Treasury, which are deposited with reputable financial institutions. The Company’s cash
management and investment policy limits investment instruments to investment-grade securities with the objective to
preserve capital and to maintain liquidity until the funds can be used in business operations.

Accounts receivable are typically unsecured and are generally derived from revenue earned from transit
agencies, universities and airports in North America and global commercial vehicle manufacturers in both North
America and the European Union. The Company periodically evaluates the collectability of its accounts receivable
and provides an allowance for potential credit losses as necessary.

Given the large order value for customers and the relatively low number of customers, revenue and accounts
receivable have typically been concentrated with a limited number of customers.

Revenue Accounts Receivable
Year Ended December 31, December 31,
2020 2019 2018 2020 2019
Number of customers accounted
for 10% or more* . .......... 1 — 3 2 4
* One customer accounted for 21% of total revenue for year ended December 31, 2020 and 33% of the accounts receivable,

net as of December 31, 2020. No other individual customer accounted for more than 20% of total revenue for years ended
December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, or accounts receivable, net as of December 31, 2020 and 2019.

Single source suppliers provide the Company with a number of components that are required for
manufacturing of our current products. In other instances, although there may be multiple suppliers available, many
of the components are purchased from a single source. If these single source suppliers fail to meet the Company’s
requirements on a timely basis at competitive prices, the Company could suffer manufacturing delays, a possible loss
of revenue, or incur higher cost of sales, any of which could adversely impact the Company’s operating results.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company’s financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, short-term investments, accounts payable, and accrued and other current liabilities, approximates fair
value due to the short period of time to maturity, receipt, or payment. The carrying amount of the Company’s debt,
except for Convertible Notes, approximates its fair value as the stated interest rates approximate market rates
currently available to the Company.

In August 2020, the Company issued Convertible Notes that contain embedded features subject to derivative
accounting. These embedded features are composed of conversion options that have the economic characteristics of a
contingent early redemption feature settled in a variable number of shares of the Company’s stock. These conversion
options are bifurcated and accounted for as a derivative liability separately from the host debt instrument. Embedded
derivatives are recognized as a derivative liability on the balance sheet. The derivative liability is measured at fair
value and subject to remeasurement at each balance sheet date.

The warrants issued in connection with the Convertible Notes are classified as a liability because they can
become exercisable into common stock upon a Qualified Initial Public Offering (“QIPO”) or into convertible
preferred stock after 5 years from issuance date in the event that there is no QIPO during such period. Such warrants
are measured at fair value, subject to remeasurement at each balance sheet date.

Inventories

Inventories are recorded at the lower of cost and net realizable value using the first-in, first-out method.
Inventory costs consist primarily of the cost of materials, manufacturing support costs, including labor and factory
overhead associated with such production, and shipping costs. The costs of vehicles, charger equipment or prototype
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PROTERRA INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont.)

products delivered to customers that have not yet met revenue recognition criteria are also included in inventories.
We assess the valuation of inventory and periodically record a provision to adjust inventory to its estimated net
realizable value, including when we determine inventory to be obsolete or in excess of anticipated demand. Once
inventory has been written-off or written-down, it creates a new cost basis for the inventory that is not subsequently
written-up.

Deferred Cost of Goods Sold

Deferred cost of goods sold primarily includes incurred costs for charging system installations that have not
met revenue recognition criteria.

Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment, including leasehold improvements, are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, as follows:

Property, Plant, and Equipment Estimated Useful Life

Computer hardware 3 years

Computer software 3 to 5 years

Internally used vehicles and charging systems over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or 5 years

Machinery and equipment 5 tol2 years

Office furniture and equipment 5 years

Tooling 5 years

Leasehold improvements over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the terms of the
related leases

Leased batteries over the shorter of the terms of the related leases or 12 years

Leased vehicles and charging systems over the shorter of the terms of the related leases or 5 years

In the fourth quarter of 2019, we completed a review of the estimated useful lives of vehicles and charging
equipment used for demonstration purposes. Based on this review, we revised the estimated useful lives of demo
vehicles from 12 years to five years effective on November 1, 2019, after considering the condition of assets and
our long-term strategy for operating such assets. We believe this change in estimate is appropriate, as it is based on
actual experience and the expectations for the ongoing productive use of these assets. The impact to depreciation
expense caused by this change in estimate is not material to selling, general and administrative expense on the
statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2019 or future periods.

If the estimated useful life of an asset is less than the stated number of years in our capitalization policy, the
depreciation expense will be recorded over the shorter period.

Upon the retirement or sale of property, plant, and equipment, the cost and associated accumulated
depreciation are removed from the balance sheet, and the resulting gain or loss is reflected on the statement of
operations. Maintenance and repair expenditures are expensed as incurred while major improvements that increase
the functionality, output, or expected life of an asset are capitalized and depreciated ratably over the identified
useful life.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates the recoverability of property, plant, and equipment and right-of-use assets for
possible impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not
be recoverable. Recoverability of these assets is measured by a comparison of the carrying amounts to the future
undiscounted cash flows the assets are expected to generate. If such review indicates that the carrying amount of
long-lived assets is not recoverable, the carrying amount of such assets is reduced to fair value.
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PROTERRA INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont.)

In addition to the recoverability assessment, the Company periodically reviews the remaining estimated useful
lives of property, plant, and equipment. If the estimated useful life assumption for any asset is reduced, the remaining
net book value is depreciated over the revised estimated useful life.

The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment at the lowest level for which separate cash flows can
be identified. During the fourth quarter of 2019, due to the introduction of new products and related technology
advancements, we determined that an impairment analysis of certain assets leased to customers was required to be
performed. The estimated undiscounted future cash flows generated by these assets were less than their carrying
amounts. The carrying amounts of the assets were reduced to fair value, which resulted in an impairment charge
of $6.4 million recorded in the statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2019.

No impairment charge was recognized in 2018. We recorded $0.1 million impairment charge associated with a
facility lease for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists of billings or payments received in advance of revenue recognition that are
recognized as revenue once the revenue recognition criteria are met. In some instances, progress billings are issued
upon meeting certain milestones stated in the contracts. Accordingly, the deferred revenue balance does not represent
the total contract value of non-cancelable arrangements. Invoices are typically due within 30 to 40 days.

Deferred revenue was $28.2 million and $18.6 million as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. For
the year ended December 31, 2020, $16.5 million revenue was recognized from the deferred revenue balance as
of December 31, 2019. The reduction in deferred revenue was offset by new billings for products and extended
warranty services for which revenue had not been recognized as of December 31, 2020. The current portion of
deferred revenue represents the amount that is expected to be recognized as revenue within one year from the
balance sheet date.

Revenue Recognition

We derive revenue primarily from the sale of vehicles and charging systems, the installation of charging
systems, the sale of battery systems and powertrain components to other vehicle manufacturers, as well as the sale of
spare parts and other services provided to customers. Product revenue consists of revenue earned from vehicles and
charging systems, battery systems and powertrain components, installation of charging systems, and revenue from
leased vehicles, charging systems, and batteries under operating leases. Leasing revenue recognized over time was
approximately $2.3 million, $3.8 million and $3.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. Parts and other service revenue includes revenue earned from spare parts, the design and development
of battery systems and drive systems for other vehicle manufacturers, and extended warranties.

Goods and services that are promised in our contracts include vehicles, charging systems, battery systems and
powertrain components to other vehicle manufacturers, installation of charging systems, spare parts, and extended
warranty. We assess the products and services promised in contracts at contract inception, and identify performance
obligations for each promise to transfer to the customer a product or service that is distinct. If a product or service is
separately identifiable from other items in the bundled arrangement and a customer can benefit from the product or
service on its own or with other resources that are readily available to the customer, then such product or service is
considered distinct. Customer contracts typically have multiple performance obligations. Generally, our goods and
services are considered separate performance obligations. Depending on the contractual arrangement, the charging
systems and related installation services if purchased by customer are typically considered as one performance
obligation, as they represent inputs of a combined integrated output which benefits the customer. Development
services are typically sold on a stand-alone basis and are not bundled with other goods or services.
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PROTERRA INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont.)

The transaction price of the contract is allocated to each performance obligation in a manner depicting the
amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer (the “allocation objective™). If the allocation objective is met at contractual prices, no
further allocations are made. Otherwise, the Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation
identified in the contract on a relative standalone selling price basis.

To determine the standalone selling price of its promised products or services, we conduct an analysis
to determine whether its products or services have an observable standalone selling price. In determining the
observable standalone selling price, the Company requires that a substantial majority of the standalone selling prices
for a product or service fall within a reasonably narrow range. If there is no directly observable standalone selling
price for a particular product or service, then we estimate a standalone selling price by using the estimated cost plus
margin or by reviewing external and internal market factors including, but not limited to, pricing practices including
historical discounting, major service groups, and the geographies in which we offer products and services.

We recognize revenue when or as it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of a product or
service to a customer.

Revenue from product sales is recognized when control of the underlying performance obligations is
transferred to the customer. Revenue from vehicles and charging systems, and installation of charging systems
is typically recognized upon acceptance by the customer. Under certain contract arrangements, the control of
the performance obligations related to the charging systems is transferred over time, and the associated revenue
is recognized over the installation period using an input measure based on costs incurred to date relative to total
estimated costs to completion. Spare parts revenue is recognized upon shipment. Extended warranty revenue is
recognized over the life of the extended warranty using the time elapsed method. Development service contracts
typically include the delivery of prototype products to customers. The performance obligation associated with
the development of prototype products as well as battery systems and powertrain components to other vehicle
manufacturers, is satisfied at a point in time, typically upon shipping.

Revenue derived from performance obligations satisfied over time from charging systems and installation was
$6.0 million, $7.2 million and $0.6 million in the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018, respectively.
Extended warranty revenue is not material to date.

Typically, the Company does not have contract assets, as rights to consideration in exchange for goods or
services that have transferred to a customer are not conditional on anything other than the passage of time. In certain
cases, there is a condition that requires a contract asset to be recognized. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the
contract assets balance was $2.8 million and $0.6 million, respectively. The contract assets are expected to be billed
within the next twelve months and are recorded in the prepaid expenses and other current assets on the balance
sheets.

As of December 31, 2020, the amount of remaining performance obligations that have not been recognized as
revenue was $229.4 million, of which 67% was expected to be recognized as revenue over the next 12 months and
the remainder thereafter. This amount excludes the value of remaining performance obligations for contracts with an
original expected length of one year or less.

Lease Arrangements

The Company offers customers leasing alternatives outside of the standard sales contracts for vehicles,
charging equipment and batteries used in the vehicles. The leasing arrangements are typically bundled together with
the sales contracts. We assessed the nature of the bundled arrangements under the revenue accounting standard.

For arrangements that contain a lease, we determined the classification of the lease in accordance with Topic

840, Leases, prior to the adoption of Topic 842, Leases, on January 1, 2020. A lease arrangement that transfers
substantially all of the benefits and risks incident to ownership of the products is classified as a sales-type lease
based on the criteria established by the accounting standard; otherwise the lease is classified as an operating lease.

F-32

PROTERRA CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION - PLEASE DO NOT SHARE



PROTERRA INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont.)

For sales-type leases, product revenue is recognized upon customer acceptance of the underlying leased assets.
The current portion of net investment in sales-type leases is recorded in Accounts Receivable, and the non-current
portion is recorded in Other Assets on the Company’s balance sheets. The discounted unguaranteed residual value of
underlying leased assets is not material to the net investment in lease balance.

For operating leases, the leasing revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term, which is
commenced upon customer acceptance.

We monitor the performance of customers who leased batteries and are subject to ongoing payments. No
allowance was recorded for the receivables under the leasing arrangements.

We adopted the new lease accounting standard, Topic 842, Leases, on January 1, 2020. We determine whether
an arrangement is or contains a lease at inception. Short-term leases with a term of less than 12 months will not be
recognized in the right-of-use assets or lease liabilities. The lease and non-lease components are not separated for all
leases regardless of whether the Company is the lessee or a lessor to the lease. Refer to Note 6, Leases, for additional
information.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold includes direct material and labor costs, manufacturing overhead including depreciation
expense, freight costs, and reserves for estimated warranty expenses. Cost of goods sold also includes charges to
write-down the carrying value of inventory when it exceeds its estimated net realizable value and to provide for
on-hand inventory that is either obsolete or in excess of forecasted demand. Costs of development services are
expensed as incurred. Costs of development services incurred in periods prior to the finalization of an agreement are
recorded as research and development expense. Once an agreement is finalized, these costs are recorded in cost of
goods sold.

Sales and Other Taxes

Taxes assessed by various government entities, such as sales, use, and value added taxes, collected at the time
of sale are excluded from revenue.

Shipping Costs

Amounts billed to customers related to shipping and handling are classified as revenue, and the related
shipping and handling costs are included in cost of goods sold.

Research and Development Costs

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. Research and development expense consists
primarily of payroll and benefits of those employees engaged in research, design, and development activities, costs
related to prototype parts and design tools, license expenses related to intellectual property, supplies and services,
depreciation, and other occupancy costs.

Advertising Expenses

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expenses were $0.6 million, $0.9 million, and
$0.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Product Warranties

The Company provides a limited warranty to customers on vehicles, charging systems, and battery systems.
The limited warranty ranges from one to 12 years depending on the components. Separately, the Company also
periodically performs field service actions related to product service campaigns. Pursuant to these warranties and
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field service actions, we will repair, replace, or adjust the parts on the products that are defective in factory-supplied
materials or workmanship. A warranty reserve for the products sold is recorded at the point of revenue recognition,
which includes the best estimate of the projected costs to repair or replace items under the limited warranty and field
service actions. These estimates are based on actual claims incurred to date and an estimate of the nature, frequency
and costs of future claims. These estimates are inherently uncertain given the relatively short history of sales.
Changes to the historical or projected warranty experience may cause material changes to the warranty reserve in the
future. The warranty reserve does not include projected warranty costs associated with the vehicles under operating
leases, as the costs to repair these warranty claims are expensed as incurred. The portion of the warranty reserve
expected to be incurred within the next 12 months is included within accrued liabilities while the remaining balance
is included within other long-term liabilities on the balance sheets.

Warranty expense is recorded as a component of cost of goods sold. Accrued warranty activity consisted of the
following (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018

Warranty reserve — beginning of period . . .......... ... ... ...... $ 14,926 $ 10,602 $ 2,581
Warranty costs incurred . ......... ... (4,214) (6,031) (2,653)
Net changes in liability for pre-existing warranties, including

CXPITAtIONS. . o« ottt e e (3,392) (840) —
Provision for warranty . ........... ... ... ... 11,262 11,195 10,674
Warranty reserve —end of period . . ............................ $ 18,582 $ 14926 $ 10,602

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company uses the fair value method for recording stock-based compensation expense. Stock-based
compensation expense for stock options is estimated at the grant date based on each stock option’s fair value as
calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The stock-based compensation expense for stock option
grants is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for the entire award.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are computed using the asset and liability method, under which deferred tax assets and liabilities
are determined based on the difference between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using
enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income. Valuation
allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized.

The Company recognizes tax benefits from uncertain tax positions only if it is more likely than not that the
tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities based on the technical merits of the position.
The Company adjusts these reserves when facts and circumstances change, such as the closing of a tax audit or the
refinement of an estimate. The provision for income taxes includes the effects of any reserves that are considered
appropriate.

Accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are classified as income tax expense.

Government Incentives

The Company receives incentives from the federal and state government agencies in the form of grants.
Incentives are recorded in the financial statements in accordance with their purposes, either as a reduction of
expense or a reduction of the cost of the capital investment. The benefit of these incentives is recorded when
performance is complete and all conditions as specified in the agreement are fulfilled.
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California and certain other states provide incentives to accelerate the purchase of cleaner, more efficient
buses in the form of point-of-sale discounts to vehicle purchasers. These incentives are included in the customer
contract value, and recognized as revenue once all revenue recognition criteria are met.

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The Company did not have other comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019
and 2018, respectively.

2. Adoption of New Accounting Standards

Topic 842, Leases. This standard provides guidance on the recognition, measurement, presentation,
and disclosure of leases. The new standard supersedes the present U.S. GAAP standard on leases and requires
substantially all leases to be reported on the balance sheet as right-of-use assets and lease obligations. The Company
elected to adopt the new lease accounting standard on January 1, 2020 using the optional transition method,
recognizing a cumulative-effect adjustment to the balance sheet and not adjusting comparative information for prior
periods. Refer to Note 6, Leases, for additional information.

ASU No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses
on Financial Instruments. This standard requires the measurement and recognition of expected credit losses
for financial assets held at amortized cost. The Company adopted this standard on January 1, 2020, and it had no
material impact on the financial statements.

ASU No. 2018-13, Changes to Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820). This
standard improves the effectiveness of disclosure requirements for recurring and nonrecurring fair value
measurements. This standard removes, modifies, and adds certain disclosure requirements. The Company adopted
this standard on January 1, 2020, and it had no material impact on the financial statements.

ASU No. 2018-15, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other — Internal-Use Software (Subtopic 350-40):
Customer’s Accounting for Implementation Costs Incurred in a Cloud Computing Arrangement That Is a Service
Contract. This standard aligns the requirements for capitalizing implementation costs incurred in a hosting
arrangement that is a service contract requiring the capitalization of implementation costs incurred to develop or
obtain internal-use software (and hosting arrangements that include an internal-use software license). The Company
adopted this standard on January 1, 2020, and it had no material impact on the financial statements.

ASU No. 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate
Reform on Financial Reporting. The amendments in this standard provide optional guidance for a limited time
to ease the potential burden in accounting for reference rate reform. The new guidance provides optional expedients
and exceptions for applying U.S. GAAP to contracts, hedging relationships and other transactions affected by
reference rate reform if certain criteria are met. The amendments apply only to contracts and hedging relationships
that reference the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) or another reference rate expected to be discontinued
due to reference rate reform. These amendments are effective from March 2020 through December 31, 2022. The
amendments have no material impact on the financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

ASU No. 2019-12, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes. This standard
simplifies the accounting for income taxes, eliminates certain exceptions within Topic 740, Income Taxes, and
clarifies certain aspects of the current guidance to promote consistency among reporting entities. The Company will
adopt this standard on January 1, 2021, and expect no material impact on the financial statements.

ASU No. 2020-06, Accounting for Convertible Instruments and Contracts in an Entity’s Own Equity. This
standard simplifies the accounting for convertible instruments by removing certain separation models in ASC
470-20, Debt — Debt with Conversion and Other Options. This standard updates the guidance on certain embedded
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conversion features that are not required to be accounted for as derivatives under Topic 815, Derivatives and
Hedging, or that do not result in substantial premiums accounted for as paid-in capital, such that those features are
no longer required to be separated from the host contract. The convertible debt instruments will be accounted for as
a single liability measured at amortized cost. This will also result in the interest expense recognized for convertible
debt instruments to be typically closer to the coupon interest rate when applying the guidance in Topic 835, Interest.
Further, this standard made amendments to the EPS guidance in Topic 260 for convertible instruments, the most
significant impact of which is requiring the use of the if-converted method for diluted earnings per share calculation,
and no longer allowing the net share settlement method. This standard also made revisions to Topic 815-40, which
provides guidance on how an entity must determine whether a contract qualifies for a scope exception from
derivative accounting. The amendments to Topic 815-40 change the scope of contracts that are recognized as assets
or liabilities. This standard is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2021, with early
adoption permitted after December 15, 2020. Adoption of this standard can either be on a modified retrospective

or full retrospective basis. The Company is currently evaluating this standard but expect no material impact on the
financial statements.

3. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company measures certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value. Fair value is determined based
on the exit price that would be received from selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is estimated by applying the following hierarchy:

Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets, or other inputs that are observable or
can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities; and

Level 3 — Inputs that are generally unobservable and typically reflect management’s estimate of assumptions
that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.

Financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis using the above input categories were as follows
(in thousands):

Fair Value at

Pricing December 31,
Category 2020 2019
Assets:
Cash equivalents:

Money market funds . ........................... Level 1 $ 744§ 3,334

U.S. Treasury Securities. .. .. ............ouuenn.. Level 1 64,997 29,957
Short-term investments:

U.S. Treasury SeCurities. .. ...........ooueunen.n.. Level 1 68,990 39,877
Total ... .. $ 134,731 $ 73,168
Liabilities:

Other non-current liabilities:

Derivative liability. .. ............... ... ... ..... Level 3 $ 70,870 $ —

Warrant liability ................ ... ... ... ..... Level 3 39,670 —
Total ..o $ 110,540 $ —

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, short-term investments were primarily comprised of U.S. Treasury
securities. The unrealized gain/losses related to fixed income debt securities were immaterial and primarily due to
changes in interest rates, which are temporary in nature.
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As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the contractual maturities of the short-term investments were less than
one year.

In August 2020, the Company issued Convertible Notes that contain embedded features subject to derivative
accounting. Refer to Note 5, Debt, for additional information on the Convertible Notes.

The embedded derivatives are recognized as a derivative liability on the balance sheet, and are measured at fair
value, subject to remeasurement at each balance sheet date. The fair value of derivative liability is measured as the
difference between the estimated value of the Convertible Notes with and without such conversion features utilizing
Monte Carlo simulation pricing model.

The warrants issued in connection with the Convertible Notes are classified as a liability because they can
become exercisable into common stock upon a QIPO or into convertible preferred stock after five years from
issuance date in the event that there is no QIPO during such period. Such warrants are measured at fair value, subject
to remeasurement at each balance sheet date. The fair value of the warrant liability is measured using Monte Carlo
Simulation pricing model.

The fair value of the Convertible Notes was $365.9 million as of December 31, 2020. The carrying value of
the Convertible Notes of $106.4 million, net of $97.1 million unamortized debt discount and issuance costs, as of
December 31, 2020, was recorded in Debt, non-current on the balance sheets.

The valuation of derivative and warranty liabilities and the Convertible Notes are based on significant inputs
not observable in the market, and thus represents a level 3 measure. The key inputs to the valuation model include
fair value of equity, equity volatility, expected term until a liquidity event to exit, expected term until exercise, and
risk-free interest rate.

A summary of the changes in the fair value of the derivative liability is as follows (in thousands):

Amount
Derivative liability —at iSSUANCE. . . ... . ... .. $ 68,514
Change in fair value . . ... ... . 2,356
Derivative liability — December 31, 2020. . . .. ... ... $ 70,870

A summary of the changes in the fair value of the warrant liability is as follows (in thousands):

Amount
Warrant liability — at iSSUANCE. . . . . ..ottt ettt e e e e e e e $ 29,037
Change in fair value . .. ... ... 10,633
Warrant liability — December 31, 2020. . . . ... ... $ 39,670

The change in fair value of derivative and warrant liabilities is recorded in the statement of operations.

4. Balance Sheet Components
Cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2020 2019
Cash. . .. $ 44978 $ 6,949
Cashequivalents . . .......... . i e e 65,741 33,291
Total cash and cash equivalents ............. ... ... ... ... ... .. ... ... $ 110,719 $ 40,240
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The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash reported within the
balance sheets to the total of such amounts shown on the statements of cash flows.

December 31,

2020 2019
Cashandcashequivalents. . ......... ... .. .. .. .. $ 110,719 $ 40,240
Restricted cash, current portion . ............ ... ... 8,397 5,970
Restricted cash, net of current portion . ............... ... .. ... ... . ... .. 4,581 7,439
Total restricted cash .. ... .. ... . .. . . 12,978 13,409
Total cash and cash equivalents, and restricted cash. . ..................... $ 123,697 $ 53,649

Inventories consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2020 2019
Raw materials . .. . ..ot $ 31,148 § 46,495
WOTK 1N PrOgress . . .o vttt 8,042 23,197
Finished goods . ... ... 47,756 19,400
SEIVICE PATS . . . ot ottt et et 5,384 4,950
Total INVENTOTIES . . . . ottt et e e e e e e e e e e $ 92,330 $ 94,042

The Company recorded a write-down of excess or obsolete inventories to cost of goods sold of $3.0 million,
$4.9 million and $4.2 million in the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Property, plant, and equipment, net, consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2020 2019

Computer hardwWare. . . .. ...ttt e e $ 4,708 $ 3,830
Computer SOfTWATE . . .. oottt e 8,849 6,558
Internally used vehicles and charging systems. . ......................... 19,136 12,936
Leased vehicles and batteries ... .......... it 7,081 10,715
Leasehold improvements . ............... ...ttt 10,234 8,275
Machinery and eqUipment . .. ...........oui it 26,026 14,237
Office furniture and equipment .. ................ ittt 1,854 1,876
TOOlINg . .ot 21,727 17,918
Finance lease right-of-use assets. .. .......... ... .. .. i 179 —
ConStruction i PIrOZIESS . « . o . vt vttt e e e e e e e e 1,830 6,642

101,624 82,987
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization. .. ..................... (48,037) (35,472)
Total .o $ 53,587 § 47,515

Construction in progress was comprised of various assets that are not available for their intended use as of the
balance sheet date.

Depreciation and amortization expense were $15.5 million, $12.6 million and $9.3 million for the years ended
December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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Accrued liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands):

Accrued payroll and related expenses
Accrued sales and use tax
WaAITANLY TESETVE . « o . vttt et e e e e e e e et e e e e e et e
Financing obligation . .. ........... .. ..
Accrued INEIeSt . . ..o vttt
Accrued audit and accounting related expenses
Accrued charger installation costs

Other accrued expenses

Total ..o

Other long-term liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands):

Financing obligation . .. ... ... ..
Accrued INTETeSt . .. .o e
Warranty re€SCIVE. . . . o v et ettt e ettt e e e e
Deferred rent. .. ... ...

December 31,

2020 2019

6,095 § 2,799

975 1,254

6,121 7,697
3,056 850

127 174

428 419

769 547

1,565 895
19,736 § 14,635

December 31,

2020 2019
— 3,056
— 120
12,461 7,229
— 793
117 —
12,578 § 11,198

In July 2016, we entered into a bus sale and lease transaction for ten Catalyst buses. These buses are leased
to other parties for five years by the customer. At the end of the lease term, the fourth quarter of 2021, we have
an obligation to repurchase the buses back from the customer. We make a portion of the monthly lease payments
directly to the customer and also provided a guarantee to the customer on the remaining lease payments if the lessee
fails to pay. We received $6.0 million from the customer directly upon delivery in 2016. Under U.S. GAAP, this sales
transaction is considered as a borrowing and the lease transaction is considered as an operating lease.

The financing obligation was $3.1 million and $3.9 million as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
Interest expense on the financing obligation is recognized using the effective interest method. The monthly lease
payment is recognized as leasing revenue. The costs of the buses are recorded as leased vehicles in property, plant,
and equipment on the balance sheets.

5. Debt

Debt, net of debt discount and issuance costs, consisted of the following (in thousands):

Hercules Credit Facility

Senior Credit Facility .......... . . .
PPP loan . ... ...
Convertible NOES . . ...ttt e

Total Debt, non-current
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Loan and Security Agreement

The Company entered into a loan and security agreement with Hercules Capital, Inc. (“Hercules Credit Facility™)
in 2015, and amendments in 2016 and 2017. In May 2019, the Company entered into an amendment to the Hercules
Credit Facility to repay $20.0 million in principal, and extend the maturity date of the remaining $10.0 million
outstanding principal to May 2021. The interest rate was composed of a cash interest rate of the greater of 10.55%
or 10.55% plus the prime rate minus 5.5% and a PIK interest rate of 1.75% per annum. The loan had an interest only
period through its maturity date. The $2.3 million end-of-term charge under the Amended Hercules Credit Facility was
paid on June 1, 2019. The $0.8 million accrued PIK interest under the existing Hercules Credit Facility and $0.2 million
prepayment penalty were paid at the closing of the amendment. As of December 31, 2019, the outstanding balance
under the Hercules Credit Facility was $10.0 million, and the cash interest rate was 10.55% per annum.

In connection with entering into the Hercules Credit Facility in 2015, the Company issued to Hercules a
warrant to purchase 397,932 shares of Series 4 convertible preferred stock. The Company determined the fair value
of the convertible preferred stock warrant shares was $0.3 million, which was recorded as a debt discount and a
convertible preferred stock warrant liability, as discussed further in Note 8. In connection with the first amendment,
the Company issued to Hercules an additional warrant to purchase 79,587 shares of Series 4 convertible preferred
stock. The Company determined the fair value of the convertible preferred stock warrant was $0.1 million, which
was recorded as a debt discount and a convertible preferred stock warrant liability, as discussed further in Note 8.
In connection with the Amended Hercules Credit Facility in 2019, the Company issued to Hercules a warrant to
purchase 36,630 shares of common stock warrants. The Company determined the fair value of the common stock
warrant was $0.1 million, which was recorded as a debt discount and classified as equity in additional paid-in
capital. The warrant is exercisable for 10 years, and will automatically exercise upon the initial public offering.

The end-of-term charge was accreted to accrued interest using the effective-interest method from the funding
date to its payment due date. As of December 31, 2019, the accrued PIK interest balance was $0.1 million.

The balance of debt issuance costs and discounts was $0.4 million as of December 31, 2019. The debt issuance
cost and debt discounts were amortized to interest expense over the terms of the Hercules Credit Facility using
the effective interest method. The amortization of debt issuance cost and debt discounts to interest expense was
$0.2 million, $0.3 million and $0.2 million for 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The Company’s obligations under the Hercules Credit Facility were secured by a security interest and amended
to a second security interest under the Amended Hercules Credit Facility on substantially all the Company’s assets
except for intellectual property and other restricted property.

In August 2020, the Company made the repayment in full of its obligations of $10.3 million under the
Hercules Credit Facility, as amended, including principal and accrued interest. The Hercules Credit Facility was
terminated upon payoff and the remaining unamortized debt issuance cost and debt discounts of $0.2 million were
recorded to interest expense.

Senior Credit Facility

In May 2019, the Company entered into a Loan, Guaranty and Security Agreement for a senior secured
asset-based lending facility (“Senior Credit Facility”) with borrowing capacity up to $75.0 million. The commitment
under the Senior Credit Facility is available to the Company on a revolving basis through the earlier of May 2024
or 91 days prior to the stated maturity of any subordinated debt in aggregate amount of $7.5 million or more. The
maximum availability under the Senior Credit Facility is based on certain specified percentages of eligible accounts
receivable and inventory, subject to certain reserves, to be determined in accordance with the Senior Credit Facility.
The commitment under the Senior Credit Facility includes a $10.0 million letter of credit sub-line. Subject to certain
conditions, the commitment may be increased by $50.0 million upon approval by the lender, and at the Company’s
option, the commitment can be reduced to $25.0 million or terminated upon at least 15 days written notice.
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The Senior Credit Facility is secured by a security interest in substantially all of the Company’s assets except
for intellectual property and other restricted property.

Borrowings under the Senior Credit Facility bear interest at per annum rates equal to, at the Company’s
option, either (i) the base rate plus an applicable margin for base rate loan, or (ii) the London Interbank Offered
Rate (“LIBOR”) plus an applicable margin for LIBOR loan. The base rate is calculated as the greater of (a) the
Lender prime rate, (b) the federal funds rate plus 0.5%, and (c) one-month LIBOR plus 1.0%. The applicable margin
is calculated based on a pricing grid linked to quarterly average excess availability (as a percentage of borrowing
capacity). For base rate loans, the applicable margin ranges from 0.0% to 1.5%, and for LIBOR Loans, it ranges
from 1.5% to 3.0%. The Senior Credit Facility contains certain customary non-financial covenants. In addition, the
Senior Credit Facility requires the Company to maintain a Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio of at least 1.00:1.00 during
such times as a covenant trigger event shall exist.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the outstanding balance under the Senior Credit Facility was $17.1 million
and $15.3 million, respectively, with maturity of May 2024. The Company incurred approximately $0.4 million debt
issuance costs under this facility, and will amortize these costs to interest expense over the borrowing term. The
interest rate was 3.09% and 4.89% per annum as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Small Business Administration Loan

In May 2020, the Company received Small Business Administration (“SBA”) loan proceeds of $10.0 million
from Town Center Bank pursuant to the Paycheck Protection Program (“the PPP loan”) under the “Coronavirus
Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act”. The PPP loan was in the form of a note and matures on May 6,
2022. The interest rate is 1.00% per annum and payable monthly commencing in December 2020. All or a portion
of the PPP loan may be forgiven by the SBA upon application with supporting documentation of expenditures in
accordance with SBA requirements, which include employees being kept on the payroll for eight weeks after the date
of the loan and the proceeds being used for payroll, rent, mortgage interest, or utilities.

Convertible Notes

In August 2020, the Company entered into a Note Purchase Agreement for Secured Convertible Promissory
Notes (“Convertible Notes”). The Convertible Notes have an aggregate principal amount of $200.0 million, with a
cash interest of 5.0% per annum payable at each quarter end and a paid-in-kind interest of 4.5% per annum payable
by increasing the principal balance at each quarter end. The Convertible Notes will mature in August 2025, and the
Company may not make prepayment unless approved by the required holders of the Convertible Notes.

At or after an underwritten initial public offering in which the Company receives gross proceeds of not less
than $100 million (“QIPO”), or at the time of a merger, acquisition or other combination between the Company and
a publicly-traded special purpose acquisition company (“SPAC transaction”), the holders may elect to convert the
Convertible Notes into shares of common stock.

At the next bona fide equity financing following the Note Purchase Agreement, or 36 months after the date of
the Note Purchase Agreement if no such equity financing shall have occurred (a “Qualified Financing”), the holders
may elect to convert the Convertible Notes into shares of the most senior series of the Company’s preferred stock.

The conversion price will be an amount equal to:

i) if'the conversion stock is being issued at or following a QIPO, the QIPO price per share multiplied by
the Discount Coefficient (as defined in the Convertible Notes), which is initially equal to 90% and will
decrease by 2.75% every 6 months following the first anniversary of the closing date of the Convertible
Notes, in effect on the date of QIPO (the “QIPO Conversion Price”); or
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ii)  if the conversion stock is being issued following a Qualified Financing, 75% of the lowest per share cash
purchase price of the common stock or preferred stock sold by the Company in the Qualified Financing;
or

iii)  if the conversion stock is being issued following a SPAC transaction, 75% of the SPAC Transaction Price
Per Share (as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement) (the “SPAC Conversion Price”).

The Convertible Notes will automatically be converted into common stock at any time after the expiration of
the lock-up period of a QIPO or SPAC transaction, if the following conditions are met:

. if the QIPO price per share equals or exceeds $6.9075, then upon the volume-weighted average
price of the Company’s publicly-traded common stock over a period of 20 consecutive trading days
exceeds 150% of the QIPO Conversion Price; or if the QIPO price per share is lower than $6.9075,
then upon the volume-weighted average price of the Company’s publicly-traded common stock over a
period of 20 consecutive trading days exceeds 150% of an amount equal to $6.9075 multiplied by the
Discount Coefficient at the time of the QIPO.

. if the SPAC Transaction Price Per Share equals or exceeds $6.9075, then upon the volume-weighted
average price of the Company’s publicly-traded common stock over a period of 20 consecutive trading
days commencing after the six month anniversary of the closing of the SPAC transaction exceeding
150% of the SPAC Conversion Price; or if the SPAC Transaction Price Per Share is lower than $6.9075,
then upon volume-weighted average price of the Company’s publicly-traded common stock over a period
of 20 consecutive trading days commencing after the six month anniversary of the closing of the SPAC
transaction and over which the Conversion Stock would be freely tradable exceeding 175% of an amount
equal to $6.9075 multiplied by 75%.

Each of the Convertible Notes shall rank equally without preference or priority of any kind over one another,
but senior in all rights, privileges and preferences to all other shares of the Company’s capital stock and all other
securities of the Company that are convertible into or exercisable for the Company’s capital stock directly or
indirectly.

Prior to the maturity date or prior to the payment or conversion of the entire balance of the Convertible Notes,
in the event of a liquidation or sale of the Company, the Company shall pay to the holders of Convertible Notes the
greater of (i) 150% of the principal balance of the Convertible Notes or (ii) the consideration that the holders would
have received had the holders elected to convert the Convertible Notes into preferred stock immediately prior to such
liquidation event.

The Convertible Notes do not entitle the holders to any voting rights or other rights as a stockholder of the
Company, unless and until the Convertible Notes are actually converted into shares of the Company’s capital stock in
accordance with their terms.

The Note Purchase Agreement contains certain customary non-financial covenants. In addition, the Note
Purchase Agreement requires the Company to maintain liquidity at quarter end of not less than the greater of
(1) $75.0 million and (ii) four times of cash burn for the three-month period then ended.

In connection with the issuance of the Convertible Notes, the Company issued warrants to the holders of
Convertible Notes to purchase 5.1 million shares of Company stock at an exercise price of $0.01 per share. The stock
issuable upon exercise of the warrants shall be (1) common stock, or (2) in the event that a QIPO has not occurred
within five years of the Note Purchase Agreement or in the event of a liquidation or sale of the Company, the most
senior series of the Company’s convertible preferred stock (or in the event that the Company is consolidated or
merges with one or more other corporations, the stock that the holder of the warrant would have been entitled to
receive if holder would have exercised the warrant prior to such event). The warrants are exercisable for 7 years, and
will be automatically exercised in the event of a change of control transaction or the expiration of the warrants.
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The warrants are freestanding financial instruments and classified as liability due to the possibility that they
can become exercisable into convertible preferred stock. The warrant liability of $29.0 million is initially measured
at fair value on its issuance date and recorded as a debt discount, and will be amortized during the term of the
Convertible Notes to interest expense using the effective-interest method. The warrant liability will be remeasured on
a recurring basis at each reporting period date, with the change in fair value reported in the statement of operations.

The embedded features are composed of conversion options that have the economic characteristics of a
contingent early redemption feature settled in a variable number of shares of Company stock. These conversion
options are bifurcated and accounted for separately from the host debt instrument. The derivative liability of
$68.5 million was initially measured at fair value on the issuance date of the Convertible Notes and recorded
as a debt discount and will be amortized during the term of the Convertible Notes to interest expense using the
effective-interest method. The derivative liability will be remeasured on a recurring basis at each reporting period
date, with the change in fair value reported in the statement of operations.

The issuance costs of $5.1 million were recorded as debt discount and will be amortized during the term of the
Convertible Notes to interest expense using the effective interest method. The amortization expense of debt discount
and issuance costs was $5.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2020.

The Convertible Notes will mature in August 2025 or will be settled by issuing equity stock, and accordingly
are classified as a non-current liability on the Company’s balance sheets. As of December 31, 2020, the Convertible
Notes, net of debt discount and issuance costs, consisted of the following (in thousands):

Principal . ... $ 200,000
PIK N ErESt . . o ottt 3,501
Total principal. . . . ... 203,501
Less debt discount and iSSUANCE COSES . . . .ot vttt et et e e (97,058)
Total Convertible NOTES . .. ...ttt e $ 106,443

As of December 31, 2020, the contractual future principal repayments of the total debt were as follows (in
thousands):

20 $ 10,000
2024, e 17,074
20250 203,501
TOtAl © ot $ 230,575

(1)  Including PIK interest added to principal balance through December 31, 2020.

The Company was in compliance with all of the covenants contained in the Senior Credit Facility and
Convertible Notes as of December 31, 2020.

6. Leases

The Company adopted the new lease accounting standard on January 1, 2020 using the modified retrospective
transition method, recognizing a cumulative-effect adjustment to the balance sheet and not adjusting comparative
information for prior periods. In addition, the Company elected the package of practical expedients permitted under
the transition guidance, which allowed the Company not to reassess (1) whether any expired or existing contracts are
or contain leases, (2) lease classification for any expired or existing leases, and (3) initial direct costs for any existing
leases. The Company did not elect the use of hindsight practical expedients in determining the lease term for existing
leases. Topic 842 also provides practical expedients for an entity’s ongoing accounting. The Company has elected
the short-term lease recognition exemption for all leases that qualify. As a result, for those leases with a term of less
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than 12 months, it will not recognize right-of-use assets or lease liabilities. The Company also elected the practical
expedient to not separate lease and non-lease components for all its leases regardless of whether the Company is the
lessee or a lessor to the lease.

The adoption resulted in a recognition of $13.8 million of operating lease assets and $14.3 million of operating
lease liabilities on the balance sheet on January 1, 2020. The difference represents prepaid rent expense and deferred
rent for leases existed on the date of adoption, which was an offset to the opening balance of operating lease assets.
The adoption has no impact on the Company’s operating expenses and cash flows.

As a Lessor
The net investment in leases are as follows:

December 31,

2020 2019
Net investment in leases, CUrrent .. ..............uuiuininunnnnnnen... $ 398 $ 343
Net investment in leases, NON-CUITENt. . . . ... ... .ottt 3,101 3,809
Total net investment in 1€ases . . .. ... ...t $ 3,499 $§ 4,152

Interest income from accretion of net investment in lease is not material.

In the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company assigned one operating lease and three sales-type leases.
The Company received a total of $3.7 million in cash, and recorded $0.9 million in product revenue for the assigned
operating lease, and an aggregate loss of assignment of $1.2 million for the sales-type leases in the other expense
(income), net on the statement of operations.

Future minimum payments receivable from operating and sales-type leases as of December 31, 2020 for each
of the next five years are as follows:

Operating leases Sales-type leases
202 L. $ 726 $ 395
202, 105 395
2023, 105 296
2024, 105 135
202 105 408
Thereafter ... ... .. 222 2,282
Total minimum lease payments. . ... .........ouuerirneeinnennnn... $ 1,368 § 3,911

As a Lessee

The Company leases its office and manufacturing facilities in Burlingame, California, Greenville, South
Carolina, City of Industry, California, and Rochester Hills, Michigan under operating lease agreements with various
expiration dates through 2026.

In June 2018, the Company entered into an agreement to sublease its office facilities in Rochester Hills,
Michigan from July 2018 to October 2023. The total sublease payments are approximately $2.3 million for the lease
term. The sublease income is recorded in the other expense (income), net on the statement of operations.

The Company had no material capital leases as of December 31, 2020.

F-44

PROTERRA CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION - PLEASE DO NOT SHARE



PROTERRA INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. Leases (cont.)

Maturities of operating lease liabilities as of December 31, 2020 were as follows (in thousands):

202 e $ 3,622
202, 3,133
2023, 2,300
2024, e 1,648
2025, e 1,039
Thereafter . . ... 443
Total undiscounted lease payment . ... .......... . .ttt 12,185
Less: IMPuted INTETeSt. . . . o oottt ettt e e e e e (1,141)
Total lease HabiltIES . . . . . o oottt $ 11,044

Future minimum payments for noncancellable operating leases, based on previous lease accounting standard,
as of December 31, 2019 were as follows (in thousands):

2020, « $ 3,912
202 e 3,619
202, 3,128
2023, 2,300
202, 1,648
Thereafter . . ... . 1,482
Total minimum 1ease PAYMENLS. . . . . . .ottt ettt et e et e 16,089
Less proceeds from sublease rental. . . ........ .. . (1,853)
Net operating lease obligation. . . ... ... it $ 14,236

Operating lease expense was $4.0 million, $3.4 million, and $3.1 million for the years ended December 31,
2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Short-term and variable lease expenses for the year ended December 31, 2020 were not significant.

Supplemental cash flow information related to leases were as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,
2020
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:
Operating cash flows from operating leases. ... ............o .. (3,855)

In the year ended December 31, 2020, the cash flow from financing leases and right-of-use assets obtained in
exchange for lease obligations were not significant.

Operating lease right-of-use assets and liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2020
Operating leases
Operating lease right-0f-use assetS . . . . ... ...t $ 10,310
Operating lease liabilities, current . . ... ........ ... .. i $ 3,153
Operating lease liabilities, NON-CUITENt. . . . .. .. ...ttt et 7,891
Total operating lease Habilities . . . ... ... . it e $ 11,044

The weighted average remaining lease term and discount rate of operating leases are 4.0 years and 4.9%,
respectively, as of December 31, 2020.

As of December 31, 2020, the Company had no significant additional operating leases and finance leases that
have not yet commenced.
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Purchase Commitments

As of December 31, 2020, the Company had outstanding inventory and other purchase commitments of
$215.7 million.

Letters of Credit

As of December 31, 2020, the Company had letters of credit outstanding totaling $0.5 million, which will
expire over various dates in 2021.

Guarantees

The Company provides guarantees of lease payments for vehicles under the financing transaction discussed in
Note 4, in the event the lessee does not make payments to the financing company.

The Company regularly reviews its performance risk under the arrangement, and in the event that it becomes
probable that it will be required to perform under a guarantee, the fair value of probable payment will be recorded.
No guarantee liability was recorded as of December 31, 2020 and 2019.

Legal Proceedings

The Company accrues contingent liabilities when it is probable that future expenditures will be made and
such expenditures can be reasonably estimated. From time to time in the normal course of business, various claims
and litigation have been asserted or commenced. Due to uncertainties inherent in litigation and other claims,
the Company can give no assurance that it will prevail in any such matters, which could subject the Company to
significant liability or damages. Any claims or litigation could have an adverse effect on the Company’s business,
financial position, operating results, or cash flows in or following the period that claims or litigation are resolved.

As of December 31, 2020, the Company was not a party to any legal proceedings that would have a material
adverse effect on its business.

8. Convertible Preferred Stock

In August and September 2019, the Company completed a private placement and issuance of a total of
10,857,762 shares of Series 8 convertible preferred stock at $6.9075 per share for proceeds of $74.8 million, net
of issuance costs of approximately $0.2 million. In October 2019, the Company completed an additional private
placement and issuance of 1,719,145 shares of Series 8 convertible preferred stock at $6.9075 per share for gross
proceeds of $11.9 million.

In June 2018, the Company completed the private placement and issuance of a total of 15,307,518 shares of
Series 7 convertible preferred stock at $6.526419 per share for proceeds of $98.8 million, net of issuance costs of
approximately $1.1 million. In September 2018, the Company completed the private placement and issuance of a
total of 8,442,102 additional shares of Series 7 convertible preferred stock at $6.526419 per share for proceeds of
$53.0 million, net of issuance costs of approximately $2.1 million.

In January 2018, the Company completed an additional private placement and issuance of 4,512,743 shares
of Series 6 convertible preferred stock at $5.539864 per share for proceeds of $24.9 million, net of issuance costs of
$0.1 million. The $5.0 million prepayment for the sale of Series 6 convertible preferred stock, which was recorded as
a non-current liability as of December 31, 2017, was converted to equity upon closing of this transaction.
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The following table summarizes convertible preferred stock authorized and issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019:

Shares Issued Aggregate

Shares and Net Carrying Liquidation

Authorized Outstanding Value Preference

(in thousands)

Series 1M . .. ... ... 27,567,694 27,476,120 $ 79,564 $ 75,006
Series 2 ..o 6,069,073 6,069,073 24,868 24,953
Series 3 .. ..o 7,617,704 7,617,704 36,096 36,475
Series4 ..o 9,159,674 8,682,155 29,901 30,000
Series S ... .. 28,391,526 28,391,526 138,747 142,987
Series6 ... 14,440,784 14,440,784 79,085 80,000
Series 7 ..ot 23,749,620 23,749,620 151,770 155,000
Series 8 .. ..o 12,576,907 12,576,907 86,648 86,875
Total ..... .. . 129,572,982 129,003,889 $ 626,679 $ 631,296

(1)  Including Series 1 convertible preferred stock issued through exercise of warrants to purchase 197,315 shares. The
proceeds from exercise of the warrants was $0.5 million.

The rights, preferences, and privileges of the convertible preferred stock are as follows:

Dividends

The holders of convertible preferred stock are entitled to receive noncumulative dividends equal to 8% of the
original issue price per share, when and if declared by the board of directors, prior and in preference to dividends on
common stock. The holders of convertible preferred stock are also entitled to participate in dividends on common
stock held on an as-if converted basis. No dividends on convertible preferred stock or common stock had been
declared by the board of directors as of December 31, 2020.

Conversion Rights

Each share of convertible preferred stock is convertible at the option of the holder into shares of common
stock at any time. The conversion rate for convertible preferred stock is equal to the quotient obtained by dividing
the applicable original issue price by the applicable conversion price in effect at the time of conversion. The original
issue price for the Series 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8 convertible preferred stock is $2.729862, $4.11146, $4.78821,
$3.45536, $5.03624, $5.539864, $6.526419, and $6.9075 per share, respectively, as adjusted for stock splits,
stock dividends, combinations, subdivisions, recapitalizations, or similar transactions. The conversion price of the
Series 1, 2, 3,4, 5, 6, 7, and 8 convertible preferred stock is $2.729862, $4.01068, $4.58348, $3.45536, $5.03624,
$5.539864, $6.526419, and $6.9075 per share, respectively, as adjusted for certain dilutive issuances, splits and
combinations.

Each share of convertible preferred stock automatically converts into shares of common stock at the
then-effective conversion price upon the Company’s sale of its common stock in a firm commitment underwriting
pursuant to a registration statement filed under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, at an aggregate public
offering price of not less than $50.0 million. In addition, all shares of convertible preferred stock (other than the
Series 7 preferred stock and Series 8 preferred stock) will automatically convert into shares of common stock upon a
vote by the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of convertible preferred stock voting together as a single
class on an as-converted basis; the Series 7 preferred stock may not be converted without the vote or written consent
of the holders of at least a majority of the then outstanding shares of Series 7 convertible preferred stock and the
Series 8 preferred stock may not be converted without the vote or written consent of the holders of at least a majority
of the then outstanding shares of Series 8 convertible preferred stock.
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In the event that the initial offering price to the public (prior to any underwriting discount), under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, at an aggregate public offering price of not less than $50.0 million (IPO), is less
than the original issuance price of the Series 8 convertible preferred stock, the conversion price of the Series 8 shall
be adjusted to the higher of the IPO price or the original issuance price of the Series 7 convertible preferred stock.

Voting Rights

Holders of convertible preferred stock have voting rights equal to the number of shares of common stock into
which their respective convertible preferred shares are then convertible. Holders of convertible preferred stock, as a
separate class, voting on an as-converted basis, shall be entitled to elect seven directors of the Company. Holders of
the common stock, as a separate class, shall be entitled to elect one director of the Company. The holders of common
stock and convertible preferred stock, voting together as a single class on an as-converted basis, shall be entitled to
elect the remaining number of directors of the Company.

Liquidation Preferences

In the event of a liquidation or sale of the Company, either voluntary or involuntary, distributions to the
stockholders shall be made in the following manner: the holders of Series 8 preferred stock shall be entitled, before
holders of other series of preferred stock and before holders of common stock, to an amount per share equal to the
greater of (1) the original issue price of Series 8 preferred stock plus any declared but unpaid dividends and (2) the
amount that would have been payable had all shares of Series 8 preferred stock been converted into common stock
immediately prior to such event. After payment to the holders of Series 8 preferred stock, the holders of Series 7
preferred stock shall be entitled, before holders of other series of preferred stock, an amount per share equal to the
greater of (1) the original issue price of Series 7 preferred stock plus any declared but unpaid dividends and (2) the
amount that would have been payable had all shares of Series 7 preferred stock been converted into common stock
immediately prior to such event. After payment to the holders of Series 8 and Series 7 preferred stock, the holders
of Series 5 and 6 convertible preferred stock then outstanding shall be entitled, on a pari passu basis, an amount per
share equal to the greater of (1) the applicable original issue price for such series of convertible preferred stock plus
any declared but unpaid dividends and (2) the amount that would have been payable had all shares of such series
convertible preferred stock been converted into common stock immediately prior to such event. After payment to
the holders of Series 8, Series 7, and Series 5 and 6 convertible preferred stock, the holders of Series 1, 2, 3, and 4
convertible preferred stock then outstanding shall be entitled, on a pari passu basis, an amount per share equal to
the greater of (1) the applicable original issue price for such series of convertible preferred stock plus any declared
but unpaid dividends and (2) the amount that would have been payable had all shares of such series convertible
preferred stock been converted into common stock immediately prior to such event. After payment of all preferential
amounts required to be paid to the holders of convertible preferred stock, the remaining funds and assets available
for distribution shall be distributed among the holders of common stock, pro rata based on the number of shares of
common stock held.

Redemption

Convertible preferred stock is not redeemable by the Company or at the option of the preferred stockholders.
Convertible Preferred Stock Warrants

Warrants for Series 4 Preferred Stock

In May 2016, in connection with the first amendment to the Hercules Credit Facility, the Company issued
warrants to purchase an additional 79,587 shares of Series 4 convertible preferred stock to Hercules at an exercise
price of $3.45536 per share, subject to certain adjustments. The warrants expire at the earlier of May 2023 and three
years from the Company’s qualified initial public offering.
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During 2015, the Company issued warrants to purchase 397,932 shares of Series 4 convertible preferred stock
to Hercules at an exercise price of $3.45536 per share, subject to certain adjustments. The warrants expire in the
earlier of May 2022 or three years from the Company’s qualified initial public offering.

Warrants for Series 1 Preferred Stock

In each of October 2011 and March 2012, the Company issued warrants to purchase 45,787 shares of Series
1 convertible preferred stock at an exercise price of $2.729862 per share to a bank in connection with a debt
arrangement. The warrants expire in October 2021.

The warrants for Series 1 and Series 4 convertible preferred stock are recorded as a warrant liability included
in other long-term liabilities on the balance sheets prior to January 1, 2018.

The Company adopted ASU No. 2017-11, Earnings per Share (Topic 260); Distinguishing Liabilities from
Equity (Topic 480),; Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815) on January 1, 2018, and reclassified its warrant liability of
$0.6 million to additional paid-in capital upon adoption. As of December 31, 2020, a total of 569,093 shares of the
Series 1 and Series 4 convertible preferred stock warrants were outstanding.

9. Common Stock

As of December 31, 2020, the Company was authorized to issue 304,672,982 shares of capital stock with
a par value of $0.0001 per share. The authorized shares consisted of 175,100,000 shares of common stock and
129,572,982 shares of convertible preferred stock. There were 6,361,952 shares and 4,400,247 shares of common
stock issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

The Company had reserved shares of common stock, on an as-if-converted basis, for issuance as follows:

December 31,

2020 2019
Exercise of stock options to purchase common stock. .. ................... 26,359,796 20,401,985
Exercise of common stock warrants to purchase common stock . ............ 5,149,716 117,630
Issuances of shares available under stock optionplans. .................... 442,891 2,362,407
Conversion of convertible preferred stock . ........ ... ... ... ... . ... 129,496,639 129,496,639
Conversion of convertible preferred stock warrants. . ..................... 569,093 569,093
Total ..o 162,018,135 152,947,754

Common Stock Warrants

In August 2020, in connection with the issuance of Convertible Notes, the Company issued warrants to
purchase 5,112,086 shares of common stock to purchasers of the Convertible Notes. The warrants have an exercise
price of $0.01 per share. The stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants shall be (1) common stock, or (2) in the
event that a QIPO has not occurred within five years of the Note Purchase Agreement or in the event of a liquidation
or sale of the Company, the most senior series of the Company’s preferred stock (or in the event that the Company
consolidated or merges with one or more other corporation, the stock that the holder of the warrant would have been
entitled to receive if holder would have exercised the warrant prior to such event). The warrants are exercisable for
7 years, and will be automatically exercised in the event of a change of control transaction or the expiration of the
warrants. These warrants are classified as liability in the balance sheets. Refer to Note 5 for further details.

In May 2019, in connection with the 2019 Amended Hercules Credit Facility, the Company issued to Hercules
a warrant to purchase 36,630 shares of common stock. The warrants have an exercise price of $5.46 per share, which
are exercisable for 10 years and will automatically exercise upon the initial public offering. See Note 5, Debt.

In the fourth quarter of 2020, 80,000 shares of the common stock warrants expired.
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In 2010, the Company adopted the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”). The Plan provides for the
issuance of incentive stock options, non-statutory stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, and
restricted stock units. Non-statutory stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, and restricted stock
units may be granted to employees, directors, and consultants, but only employees may be granted incentive stock
options. No stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, or restricted stock units had been issued under the Plan as of
December 31, 2020.

The exercise price per share of all stock options granted under the Plan must equal at least 100% of the fair
market value per share of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant as determined by the board of directors.
If, at the time the Company grants an incentive stock option, the optionee owns stock representing more than 10% of
the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company, the exercise price per share must be at least
110% of the fair market value per share of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant and the stock options
will expire five years after the date of grant. Except as noted above, stock options expire no more than ten years after
the date of grant.

Generally, a terminated service provider may exercise stock options within three months of termination.
Awards that expire or are cancelled without delivery of shares generally become available for re-issuance under the
2010 Plan.

Stock option awards generally vest over a four-year period, with 25% vesting after one year from date of grant
and quarterly thereafter. Certain awards have shorter vesting periods.

During 2020, the board of directors approved an increase in the number of shares of common stock reserved
under the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan by 6,000,000 shares to 31,994,478 shares.

The shares available for grant under the Plan were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018
Balance at the beginning of period . .. ................... 2,362,407 3,627,104 2,751,406
Additional shares authorized. . ......................... 6,000,000 1,519,075 6,847,235
Granted . . ... ... . (10,281,875) (3,359,941) (7,312,022)
Repurchased .. ... ... ... .. .. . . . — 9,000 —
Cancelled/forfeited . . ........ ... ... .. 2,362,359 567,169 1,340,485
Balance at the ending of period . ....................... 442,891 2,362,407 3,627,104
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A summary of the Company’s stock option activity and related information was as follows:

Options Outstanding

Weighted-
Average
Number of Weighted- Remaining Aggregate

Stock Options Average Contractual Intrinsic Value

Outstanding Exercise Price Life (Years) (in thousands)
Balance as of December 31,2017........ 13,764,812  $ 1.67 83 $ 9,498
Granted . .......... ... ... . .. ... 7,312,022 4.11
Exercised.............. ... ... ..... (1,217,877) 1.60
Cancelled/forfeited/expired. . . .. ........ (1,340,485) 2.06
Balance as of December 31, 2018. ....... 18,518,472 $ 2.61 83 § 42951
Granted .. ........... ... .. ... ..., 3,359,941 5.23
Exercised. ............ ... ... ... ... (909,259) 1.90
Cancelled/forfeited/expired. .. ... ....... (567,169) 3.50
Balance as of December 31, 2019. . ... ... 20,401,985 $ 3.05 76 $ 34,723
Granted' ......... ... ... ... . .. ... 6,531,875 4.36
Exercised............. ... ... ... ..... (1,961,705) 2.14
Cancelled/forfeited/expired. . . .. ........ (2,362,359) 4.11
Balance as of December 31, 20200 . . .. .. 22,609,796 $ 3.40 74 3 65,056
Exercisable as of December 31, 2020. . . .. 12,637,973 $ 2.63 62 $ 46,004

(1)  Excluding CEO Equity Awards of 3,000,000 shares and Milestone Options of 750,000 shares, of which 562,500 shares
exercisable as of December 31, 2020. Refer to section below for further details.

In March 2020, in conjunction with Mr. Allen’s appointment as the President and Chief Executive Officer, the
board of directors approved a grant to Mr. Allen of stock option awards with respect to 5,250,000 shares, comprised
of (1) 1,500,000 shares of time-based award with an exercise price of $4.75 per share vesting quarterly over 4 years,
(2) 3,000,000 shares of time-based award consists of 4 tranches with an exercise price of $10, $15, $20 and $25 per
share, respectively, and vesting quarterly over 4 years (“Equity Awards”), and (3) 750,000 shares of milestone-based
award with exercise price of $4.75 per share will vest entirely and become exercisable on the first trading day
following the expiration of the lockup period of the Company’s initial public offering or the consummation of a
change in control of the Company (“Milestone Options”). The Milestone Options shall vest in full and became
exercisable upon the consummation of a merger involving a Special Purpose Acquisition Company.

The stock-based compensation expense for Milestone Options will be recognized at the time the performance
milestone becomes probable of achievement. No stock-based compensation expense related to the Milestone Options
was recognized as of December 31, 2020 as the performance condition was not considered probable of achievement.
The unrecognized stock-based compensation expense associated with the Milestone Options was $2.1 million on the
grant date and as of December 31, 2020.

The weighted average fair value of stock options granted, excluding the 3,000,000 shares underlying the
Equity Awards with exercise price of $10, $15, $20 or $25 per share and 750,000 shares underlying the Milestone
Options, was $3.13 per share for 2020. The weighted average fair value of stock options granted was $3.14 per share
for 2019 and $2.64 per share for 2018. Aggregate intrinsic value represents the difference between the estimated fair
value of the underlying common stock and the exercise price of outstanding, in-the-money stock options. The total
intrinsic value of stock options exercised was $4.3 million for 2020, $2.9 million for 2019 and $2.3 million for 2018.
The total estimated grant date fair value of stock options vested was $9.9 million for 2020, $8.3 million for 2019 and
$4.7 million for 2018. As of December 31, 2020, the total unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related
to outstanding stock options was $34.8 million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period
of 2.9 years.
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Determining Fair Value of Stock Options

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of stock options.
The fair value of each stock option grant is estimated on the date of the grant. The fair value of the common stock
underlying the stock options has historically been determined by the board of directors. There has been no public
market for the Company’s common stock. Therefore, the board of directors has determined the fair value of the
common stock at the time of the stock option grant by considering a number of objective and subjective factors
including independent third-party valuation reports, valuations of comparable companies, sales of convertible
preferred stock and common stock to unrelated third parties, operating and financial performance, lack of liquidity
of capital stock and general and industry-specific economic outlook, among other factors. The fair value of the
underlying common stock shall be determined by the board of directors until such time that the Company’s common
stock is listed on an established stock exchange or national market system.

The fair value of stock options granted is estimated on the date of grant using the following assumptions:

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018
Expected term (inyears). . .......ovvvernrnenennnnnn.. 6.1 6.1 6.0
Risk-free interestrate ... .. ... . 0.5% 1.8% 2.8%
Expected volatility .......... .. ... .. .. . . . ... 69.1% 65.4% 71.5%

Expected dividendrate . .. ......... ... .. ... ... ..., — — —

Expected Term — The Company estimates the expected term consistent with the simplified method. The
Company elected to use the simplified method because of its limited history of stock option exercise activity. The
simplified method calculates the expected term as the average of the vesting and contractual terms of the award.

Volatility — Since the Company has no trading history by which to determine the volatility of its own
common stock price, the expected volatility being used is derived from the historical stock volatility of a
representative industry peer group of comparable publicly listed companies over a period approximately equal to the
expected term of the stock options.

Risk-Free Interest Rate — The risk-free interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury zero coupon issues with
remaining terms similar to the expected term on the options.

Expected Dividend — The Company has never declared or paid any cash dividends and does not plan to pay
cash dividends in the foreseeable future, and, therefore, used an expected dividend yield of zero in the valuation
model.

Forfeiture — All stock-based payment awards are amortized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service
periods of the awards, which are generally the vesting periods. Under the ASU No. 2016-09, Compensation — Stock
Compensation: Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting, the Company elected to account for
forfeitures when they occur.

Stock-based Compensation Expense

Stock-based compensation expense included in operating results was as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018
Costofgoodssold. ........... ... .. ... $ 929 $ 826 $ 553
Research and development . ........................... 1,616 1,436 1,227
Selling, general and administrative. .. ................... 7,737 6,258 3,596
Total stock-based compensation expense . .. .............. $ 10,282 $ 8,520 $ 5,376
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PROTERRA INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. Net Loss Per Share

Basic net loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss by the weighted-average number of shares
of common stock outstanding during the period, less the weighted-average unvested common stock subject to
repurchase or forfeiture as they are not deemed to be issued for accounting purposes. Diluted net loss per share
is computed by giving effect to all potential shares of common stock, including convertible preferred stock, stock
options, and warrants, to the extent they are dilutive.

The computation of basic and diluted net loss per share of common stock under the two-class method
attributable to common stockholders was as follows (in thousands, except for per share data):

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018
Numerator:
Net oSS . oot $ (127,007) $ (101,552) $ (91,622)
Denominator:
Weighted-average shares used in computing net loss per share
of common stock, basic and diluted . .. ................ 4,913 4,052 2,831
Net loss per share of common stock, basic and diluted . . .. .. $ (25.85) $ (25.06) $ (32.36)

We applied the two-class method to calculate its basic and diluted net loss per share of common stock, as the
convertible preferred stock are participating securities. The two-class method is an earnings allocation formula that
treats a participating security as having rights to earnings that otherwise would have been available to common stock
holders. However, the two-class method does not impact the net loss per share of common stock as we were in a loss
position for each of the periods presented and holders of convertible preferred stock do not have to participate in
losses.

Since we were in a loss position for each of the periods presented, diluted net loss per share is the same as
basic net loss per share for each period as the inclusion of all potential common stock shares outstanding would
have been anti-dilutive. The potentially dilutive securities that were excluded from the diluted per share calculation
because they would have been anti-dilutive were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018
Convertible preferred stock® .......................... 129,496,639 129,496,639 116,919,732
Warrants to purchase convertible preferred stock. . ......... 569,093 569,093 569,093
Stock options to purchase common stock. ................ 26,359,796 20,401,985 18,518,472
Warrants to purchase common stock .................... 5,149,716 117,630 81,000
Common stock subject to repurchase .. .................. — — 14,000

161,575,244 150,585,347 136,102,297

(1)  Represents the shares of common stock that the convertible preferred stock is convertible into.
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12. Income Tax

The components of the net loss before the provision for income taxes were as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018
DomestiC. . ..o $ (126,985) $ (101,552) $ (91,622)

The provision for income taxes consisted of the following (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018

Current:

Federal. . ... ... $ — 3 — S —

State. . oo e 13 — —

Foreign ... ... .. .. 9 — —
Total current provision . ... ...........couvenenennnnen.. 22 — —
Deferred:. . ... ..o — — —

Federal. .. ... ... ... . . — — —

State. . .o — — —

Foreign . ... ... .. . — — —
Total deferred provision . ............ ... ... ... .. .... — — —
Total provision for income taxes. ....................... $ 22 3 — 3 —

A reconciliation of the U.S. federal statutory income tax rates to our effective tax rate is as follows (in
percentages):

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018

U.S. federal statutoryrate .. ...............cconinon.... 21.0% 21.0% 21.0%
State income taxes, net of federal benefit. ... ............. 1.7 34 6.1
Change in valuation allowance . . . ...................... (17.5) (23.9) (27.0)
Research and development credit. . ..................... 0.2 0.3 0.6
Fair market adjustment . .. ......... .. .. .. ... .. .. ... ... (2.1) — —
Non-deductible Convertible Notes interest expense. . . . ... .. (2.2) — —
Other. . ... (1.1) (0.8) (0.7)
Effective income taxrate .............. ... ... ... ..... —% —% —%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. Income Tax (cont.)
Our deferred tax assets (liabilities) are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2020 2019
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards ... ........ ... i $ 113,643 $ 96,047
Deferred revenue. . . .. ...t 6,731 4,695
Stock-based compensation . ... .......... .. 3,560 2,509
Accruals and reserves, not currently deductible for tax purposes ............ 8,351 7,612
Research and development credit. . ........... ... .. .. ... 2,761 2,458
Goodwill . . .. 1,014 1,277
INterest EXPeNSe. . . o ottt 2,097 1,576
Lease liability . .. .. ..o 2,738 —
Other. .o 44 39
Gross deferred tax assets. . . ... ... 140,939 116,213
Less valuation allowance .................. ... (137,437) (115,175)
Net deferred tax assets . . ... ...ttt $ 3,502 $ 1,038
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment . .......... ... ... .. $ (1,008) $ (1,050)
ROU @SSCLS . ..ottt e e e e e e (2,494) —
Other. .o — 12
Gross deferred tax liabilities. . ... ...t (3,502) (1,038)
Net deferred tax asset (liabilities). ............ ... .. $ — § —

The net valuation allowance increased by $22.3 million and $24.3 million for 2020 and 2019, respectively.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company’s net deferred tax assets and liabilities were zero. The
deferred tax assets consist primarily of the federal and state net operating losses. Realization of deferred tax assets
is dependent upon future taxable income, if any, the amount and timing of which are uncertain. In assessing the
realizability of deferred tax assets, management determined that it is more likely than not that no deferred tax assets
will be realized. Therefore, the Company has provided a full valuation allowance against these deferred tax assets.

The Company had net operating loss carryforwards as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2020 2019
Federal (Prior to 2018) ... ...t $ 237,850 $ 237,850
Federal (Post December 31,2017) . ... 216,724 145,480
] 721 1< 317,801 272,029
Total .o $ 772,375 $ 655,359

Net operating loss carryforwards are available to offset future federal and state taxable income. The federal
net operating loss carryforwards generated prior to 2018 will begin to expire in 2030 and the net operating loss
carryforwards generated after December 31, 2017 do not expire. The state net operating loss carryforwards will
begin to expire in 2023.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. Income Tax (cont.)
The Company had research and development credit carryforwards as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2020 2019
Federal. . .. ..o $ 2,020 $ 1,728
State. . . 1,231 1,099
Total .. e $ 3,251 $ 2,827

The research and development credit carryforwards are available to reduce future regular income taxes.
The federal research and development credit carryforwards will begin to expire in 2037, while the South Carolina
research and development credit carryforwards will begin to expire in 2027. California research and development
credit carryforwards have no expiration date.

Utilization of the Company’s net operating loss carryforwards and research tax credit carryforwards may be
subject to substantial annual limitations due to the ownership change limitations provided by the Internal Revenue
Code and similar state provisions. The annual limitation could result in the expiration of the net operating loss
carryforwards and research tax credit carryforwards before utilization.

The Company’s policy is to recognize interest or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense.
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had no accrued interest or penalties. The unrecognized tax
benefits may change during the next year for items that arise in the ordinary course of business. In the event that any
unrecognized tax benefits are recognized, the effective tax rate will not be affected.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits for 2020, 2019 and 2018
was as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018
Beginning balance. . ......... ... ... ... ... .. ... ... $ 707 % 527 % 165
Increase — tax positions in current period. .. .............. 106 180 316
Increase — tax positions in prior periods. ... .............. — — 46
Endingbalance ............. ... ... ... ... ... ... .. ..., $ 813 § 707 % 527

The Company files tax returns in the United States and certain states. Due to the losses being carried forward,
the tax years from 2011 forward remain open to examination.

In March 2020, the “Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act” was signed into law. The
CARES Act includes provisions relating to refundable payroll tax credits, deferment of the employer portion of
certain payroll taxes, net operating loss carryback periods, alternative minimum tax credit refunds, modifications
to the net interest deduction limitations and technical corrections to tax depreciation methods for qualified
improvement property. These provisions are not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s financial
statements.

13. 401(k) Plan

The Company sponsors a 401(k) defined contribution plan covering all eligible employees and provides
matching contribution for the first 4% of their salaries. The matching contribution costs incurred were $1.9 million,
$1.7 million, and $1.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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14. Subsequent Events

On January 11, 2021, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (“Merger Agreement”)
with ArcLight Clean Transition Corp., a publicly traded special purpose acquisition company (“SPAC”) and Cayman
Islands exempted company (“ArcLight”) and Phoenix Merger Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of ArcLight (“Phoenix Merger Sub”).

At the closing, ArcLight will become a Delaware corporation, and Phoenix Merger Sub will merge with and
into Proterra, with Proterra as the surviving company and continuing as a wholly-owned subsidiary of ArcLight.
ArcLight’s name will be changed to Proterra Inc (“New Proterra”).

Upon closing of the merger,

. Proterra’s outstanding convertible preferred stock of 129,003,889 shares will convert into
129,496,639 shares of common stock. Each share of Proterra common stock (including shares issuable
upon conversion of Proterra convertible preferred stock) will be converted into the right to receive
0.8925 shares of New Proterra Common Stock, as a result of applying the Exchange Ratio;

. each Proterra option will be converted into an option to purchase shares of New Proterra Common Stock
by multiplying the number of underlying shares by the exchange ratio, rounded down to the nearest whole
share; the exercise price of each converted option will be determined by dividing the per share exercise
price of the respective Proterra options by the Exchange Ratio, rounded up to the nearest whole cent;

. each Proterra warrant to purchase common stock and convertible preferred stock will be converted into
a warrant to purchase shares of New Proterra Common Stock by multiplying the number of underlying
shares by the Exchange Ratio, rounded down to the nearest whole share; the exercise price of each
converted warrant will be determined by dividing the per share exercise price of the respective Proterra
warrant by the Exchange Ratio, rounded up to the nearest whole cent;

. each outstanding Convertible Note that was not optionally converted immediately prior to the
consummation of the merger will remain outstanding and become convertible into shares of New
Proterra Common Stock in accordance with the terms of such Convertible Notes.

In the event that the closing sale price of New Proterra common stock exceeds certain price thresholds for 20
out of any 30 consecutive trading days or in any transaction resulting in a change in control with a valuation of the
New Proterra Common Stock exceeds certain price thresholds during the first five years following the closing of the
merger, up to an additional 22,809,500 shares of New Proterra Common Stock may be issued to holders of Proterra
convertible preferred stock, common stock, warrants, vested options and Convertible Notes as of immediately prior
to the closing of the merger.

In connection with the merger, ArcLight entered into subscription agreements with certain investors (“PIPE
Investors™) to purchase an aggregate of 41.5 million shares of New Proterra common stock, immediately following
the closing of merger, at a purchase price of $10.00 per share, for aggregate gross proceeds of $415.0 million (“PIPE
Financing”).

In connection with the execution of the Merger Agreement, ArcLight entered into the Sponsor Letter
Agreement with the ArcLight Sponsor providing that 10% of the New Proterra Common Stock received by Sponsor
upon consummation of the merger in exchange for its outstanding shares of ArcLight class B ordinary shares,
excluding 140,000 shares owned by ArcLight board of directors, will be subject to vesting and forfeiture.

ArcLight public shareholders have rights to redeem their shares for cash upon the closing of the merger. The
Merger Agreement includes as a condition to close the merger that, at the closing of the merger, ArcLight will have a
minimum of $350.0 million of funds, net of any unpaid liabilities.

We have evaluated subsequent events through April 7, 2021.
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WA WOODRUFF
SAWYER

September 13, 2021

PSTA

Attn: Alvin R. Burns Jr.
Director of Procurement
3201 Scherer Drive.

St Petersburg, FL 33716

RE: Florida Electric Transit Buses with Charging and Associated Equipment
RFP 21-980369

Insurance Services
Risk Management

Dear Mr. Burns Jr.: Employee Benefits

We have reviewed the insurance requirements outlined in the Florida Electric

Transit Buses with Charging and Associated Equipment, RFP 21-980369.

This letter is confirming Proterra’s current insurance program meets the type Woodruff-sawyer & Co.
and limits of insurance required. §44.972.6326

1050 SW Sixth Avenue, Suite 1000
Therefore, the contractor has the ability to obtain the insurance coverage in Portland, OR 97204

accordance with the solicsotation requirements. :
OR License 0100167994

AN ASSUREX GLOBAL & IBN PARTNER
Please do not heistate to reach out with any questions regarding Proterra’s
insurance. " _
woodruffsawyer.com

Regards,

Deffery D. Frieaen

Jeff Friesen
Senior Vice President

D 503.416.6816
M 503.548.8502

Woodruff Sawyer
1050 SW 6" Avenue, Suite 1000
Portland, OR 97204


https://woodruffsawyer.com/
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CER 5. Form for Proposal Deviation

RFP 21-980369

This form shall be completed for each condition, exception, reservation or understanding (i.e., Deviation) in
the Proposal according to “Conditions, Exceptions, Reservations or Understandings.” One copy without any
price/cost information is to be placed in the Technical Proposal as specified in “Technical Proposal
Requirements,” and a separate copy with any price/cost information placed in the Price Proposal as specified

in “Price Proposal Requirements.”

PSTA
[RFP 21-980369]

Deviation No.: Contractor:

RFP section:

Page:

Complete description of Deviation:
None

Rationale (pros and cons):
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 9E6EE234-DAAD-4F0E-9E40-97EB08454DED

RFP 21-980369

CER 9. Other Certifications
CER 9.1 Proposal Form

Proposer shall complete the following form and include it in the price Proposal.

PROPOSAL

By execution below by a duly authorized representative(s) of the Proposer, the Proposer hereby offers to furnish
equipment and services as specified in its Proposal submitted to Pinellas Suncoast Transit Authority in response to
Request for Proposal No. 21-980369 Electric Transit Buses with Charging and Associated Equipment

Proposer: Proterra Operating Company, Inc.

Street address: 1815 Rollins Rd.

City, state, ZIP: _Burlingame, CA 94010

Name and title of Authorized Signer(s): _john Walsh - Chief Commercial Officer

Name and title of Authorized Signer(s):

Phone: (256) 499-5696

DocuSigned by:

Jolun (Nalsle 9/10,/2021

- IUUI:?LL)JDBIDZH
Authorized signature Date

Authorized signature Date
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RFP 21-980369

CER 8. Federal Certifications
CER 8.1 Buy America Certification

This form is to be submitted with an offer exceeding the small purchase threshold for federal assistance
programs, currently set at $$150,000.

Certificate of Compliance

The Contractor hereby certifies that it will comply with the requirements of 49 USC 5323(j)(1) and (13), as amended,
and the regulations of 49 CFR 661.11:

Name and title: John Walsh - Chief Commercial Officer
Company: Proterra Operating Company, Inc.

DocuSigned by:

Jolun (Nalsle 9/10,/2021

T90E3CD369164712...
Authorized signature Date

OR

Certificate of Non-Compliance

The Contractor hereby certifies that it cannot comply with the requirements of 49 USC 5323(j)(1) and (13), as
amended, but may qualify for an exception to the requirements consistent with 49 USC 5323(j)(1) and (13), as
amended, and regulations in 49 CFR 661.7.

Name and title:
Company:

Authorized signature Date
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RFP 21-980369

CER 8.2 Debarment and Suspension Certification for Prospective Contractor

Primary covered transactions must be completed by Proposer for contract value over $25,000.

Choose one alternative:

The Proposer, John Walsh, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency;

2. Have not within a three-year period preceding this Proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment
rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining,
attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state or local) transaction or Contract under a public
transaction; violation of federal or state antitrust statutes or commission or embezzlement, theft, forgery,
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

3. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (federal,
state, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in Paragraph 2 of this certification; and

4. Have not within a three-year period preceding this Proposal had one or more public transactions (federal,
state or local) terminated for cause or default.

OR

0 The Proposer is unable to certify to all of the statements in this certification, and attaches its explanation to this
certification. (In explanation, certify to those statements that can be certified to and explain those that cannot.)

The Proposer certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of the contents of the statements submitted on or
with this certification and understands that the provisions of Title 31 USC § Sections 3801 are applicable thereto.

Executed in Greenville, SC.
Name: John Walsh, Chief Commercial Officer

DocuSigned by:

ﬂo(um (Nalsle 9/10,/2021

TIOE3CD369T64 T2,
Authorized signature Date
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RFP 21-980369

CER 8.3 Debarment and Suspension Certification (Lower-Tier Covered
Transaction)

This form is to be submitted by each Subcontractor receiving an amount exceeding $25,000.

The prospective lower-tier participant (Proposer) certifies, by submission of this Proposal, that neither it nor its “principals”
as defined at 49 CFR § 29.105(p) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

If the prospective Proposer is unable to certify to the statement above, it shall attach an explanation, and indicate that it
has done so by placing an “X” in the following space:

THE PROPOSER, __John Walsh, C.C.O of Proterra Operating Company, Inc. , CERTIFIES OR AFFIRMS THE
TRUTHFULNESS AND ACCURACY OF EACH STATEMENT OF ITS CERTIFICATION AND EXPLANATION, IF
ANY. IN ADDITION, THE PROPOSER UNDERSTANDS AND AGREES THAT THE PROVISIONS OF 31 USC §§
3801 ET SEQ. APPLY TO THIS CERTIFICATION AND EXPLANATION, IF ANY.

Name and title of the Proposer’s authorized official: John Walsh - Chief Commercial Officer

DocuSigned by:
ﬁo(w\, (Walsle 9/10/2021
——1T90E3CD36916412..
Authorized signature Date
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CER 8.4 Non-Collusion Affidavit

RF¥P 21980369

This affidavit is to be filled out and executed by the Proposer; if a corporation makes the bid, then by its
properly executed agent. The name of the individual swearing to the affidavit should appear on the line
marked “Name of Affiant.” The affiant’s capacity, when a partner or officer of a corporation, should be
inserted on the line marked “Capacity.” The representative of the Proposer should sign his or her individual
name at the end, not a partnership or corporation name, and swear to this affidavit before a notary public, who

must attach his or her seal.

State of _South Carolina

, County of _Greenville

I, _John Walsh

, being first duly sworn, do hereby state that

{Name of Affiant

[am i fficar

of _Protenra Onerating Company, Ina

Capacity)

whose business is
1845 Rollins Rd, Burlingame, CA 94010

{Name of Firm, Parfnership or Corporation)

and who resides at
1815 Rolling Rd. Butlingame, CA 54010

and that
Proterra Operating Company, [ne

directly or indirectly inferested therain.

W/

{Glve names of all persons, fiims, or corporations inferested in the bid)

is/are the only person(s) with me in the profits of the herein contained Contract; that the Contract is made without
any connection or interest in the profits thereof with any persons making any bid or Proposal for said Work; that
the said Contract is on my part, in ali respects, fair and without collusion or fraud, and also that no members of the
Board of Trusises, head of any depariment or bureau, or employee thersin, or any employee of the Agency, is

September 17, 2021

Siggfature of Affiant Date

The foregoing instrument was sworn to before me by means of & physical presence or
[2 online notarization this 17th day of _ September , 2021

by _(name), as chiaf Commereail Officer (fype of authority)
on behaif of the commene - (type of business entity) .Shetheis K]

(iype

-

personally known to me or [ ] has produced NA
of identificaticn) as identification.

Notg
My

' Lesley M. Fonokalafi
ry Public, State of South
ommission Expires Jung

Carolina
30, 2025

June 30, 2025

Seal

My commission expires

Nota ,pubiic /\ \,._,
U
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RFP 21-980369

CER 8.5 Lobbying Certification
This form is to be submitted with an offer exceeding $100,000.

The Proposer certifies, to the best its knowledge and belief, that:

1. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of a federal department or agency, a member of
the U.S. Congress, an officer or employee of the U.S. Congress, or an employee of a member of the U.S.
Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal Contract, the making of any federal grant, the making
of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal,
amendment or modification thereof.

2. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for making
lobbying contacts to an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this federal Contract, grant, loan or
cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instruction, as amended by “Government wide Guidance for New
Restrictions on Lobbying,” 61 Fed. Reg. 1413 (1/19/96).

3.  The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all
sub awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub grants and contracts under grants, loans and cooperative
agreements) and that all sub recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. This certification is a material
representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into.
Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31, USC
§ 1352 (as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995). Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each
such failure.

THE PROPOSER, Proterra Operating Company, Inc. , CERTIFIES OR AFFIRMS THE
TRUTHFULNESS AND ACCURACY OF EACH STATEMENT OF ITS CERTIFICATION AND DISCLOSURE, IF
ANY. IN ADDITION, THE PROPOSER UNDERSTANDS AND AGREES THAT THE PROVISIONS OF 31 USC §§
3801 ET SEQ. APPLY TO THIS CERTIFICATION AND DISCLOSURE, IF ANY.

Name of the bidder or Proposer’s authorized official:
John Walsh

Title:
Chief Commercial Officer

DocuSigned by:

Jolun (Nalsle 9/10,/2021

. T90E3CD36916412...
Signature Date

Per paragraph 2 of the included form Lobbying Certification, add Standard Form—LLL, “Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying,” if applicable.
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RFP 21-980369

CER 8.6 Certificate of Compliance with Bus Testing Requirement

The undersigned certifies that the vehicle offered in this procurement complies and will, when delivered, comply with 49
USC § 5323(c) and FTA’s implementing regulation at 49 CFR Part 665 according to the indicated one of the following
three alternatives.

Mark one and only one of the three blank spaces with an “X.”

1. _X__ The buses offered herewith have been tested in accordance with 49 CFR Part 665 on September 2020 (date). If
multiple buses are being proposed, provide additional bus testing information below or on attached sheet. The
vehicles being sold should have the identical configuration and major components as the vehicle in the test
report, which must be submitted with this Proposal. If the configuration or components are not identical, then the
manufacturer shall provide with its Proposal a description of the change and the manufacturer’s basis for
concluding that it is not a major change requiring additional testing. If multiple buses are being proposed, testing
data on additional buses shall be listed on the bottom of this page.

2. The manufacturer represents that the vehicle is “grandfathered” (has been used in mass transit service in the
United States before October 1, 1988, and is currently being produced without a major change in configuration
or components), and submits with this Proposal the name and address of the recipient of such a vehicle and the
details of that vehicle’s configuration and major components.

3. The vehicle is a new model and will be tested and the results will be submitted to the Agency prior to
acceptance of the first bus.

The undersigned understands that misrepresenting the testing status of a vehicle acquired with federal financial
assistance may subject the undersigned to civil penalties as outlined in the Department of Transportation’s regulation on
Program Fraud Civil Remedies, 49 CFR Part 31. In addition, the undersigned understands that FTA may suspend or
debar a manufacturer under the procedures in 49 CFR Part 29.

Company name: Proterra Operating Company, Inc.
Name and title of the Proposer’s authorized official: John Walsh - Chief Commercial Officer

DocuSigned by:
60(4% (Ralsk 9/10/2021

- 190E3CD36916412...
Authorized signature Date
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CER 8.7 DBE Approval Certification

| hereby certify that the Proposer has complied with the requirements of 49 CFR 26, Participation by Disadvantaged
Business Enterprises in DOT Programs, and that its goals have not been disapproved by the Federal Transit
Administration.

Name and title of the Proposer’s authorized official: John Walsh - Chief Commercial Officer

DocuSigned by:

Jolun (Nalsle 9/10,/2021

I}:_JUI:JL,L)\?DB 047127
Authorized signature Date
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U.s. Department Headquarters East Building, 5" Floor - TCR
Of Transportation 1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE
Federal Transit Washington, DC 20590

Administration

May 10, 2021

Amy Cuny, DBELO
Proterra, Inc.

1 Whitlee Court
Greenville, SC 29607

Re: TVM DBE Goal Concurrence/Certification Letter — Fiscal Year 2021
Dear Ms. Cuny:

This letter is to inform you that the Federal Transit Administration’s (FTA) Office of Civil Rights has
received Proterra, Inc.'s Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) goal and methodology for FY 2021 for
the period of October 1, 2020-September 30, 2021. This goal submission is required by the U.S.
Department of Transportation’s DBE regulations at 49 CFR Part 26 and must be implemented in good
faith.

We have reviewed your firm's FY 2021 DBE goal and determined that it complies with DOT's DBE
regulations. Your firm is eligible to bid on FTA-funded transit contracts. This letter or a copy of the TVM
listing on FTA's website may be used to demonstrate your firm’'s compliance with DBE requirements when
bidding on federally funded vehicle procurements.

FTA reserves the right to remove/suspend this concurrence if your DBE program or FY 2021 DBE goal is
not implemented in good faith. In accordance with this good faith requirement, you must submit your
DBE Uniform Report to FTA by June 1, 2021. This report should reflect all FTA-funded contracting activity
for the first period of FY 2021 (i.e., from September 1 to March 31).

Also note that your FY 2022 DBE goal methodology must be submitted to FTA by August 1, 2021. Any
significant updates to the program plan must be submitted to FTA as they occur. If you have any
questions, please contact the FTA DBE Team via email at FTATVMSubmissions@dot.gov.

Sincerely,

A2()

V4 /(/ g
/John’zf
"~ Program Manager

Office of Civil Rights
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CER 8.8 Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards

The Proposer and (if selected) Contractor shall submit (1) manufacturer's FMVSS self-certification sticker information that
the vehicle complies with relevant FMVSS or (2) manufacturer’s certified statement that the contracted buses will not be
subject to FMVSS regulations.

Company name: proterra Operating Company, Inc.
Name of signer: John Walsh
Title: Chief Commercial Officer

DocuSigned by:

ﬁo(um (Nalsle 9/10/2021

S——190E3CD36916412...
Authonzec?&gnature Date
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PROTERRA

PROTERRA INC
SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE
The undersigned certifies on behalf of Proterra Inc (the “Company”) as follows:
1. The undersigned, JoAnn C. Covington, is the Secretary of the Company.

2. Attached hereto, as Exhibit A, is a true and complete copy of the resolutions adopted
by the Board of Directors of the Company on February 24, 2021 (“Authorizing Resolutions”),
authorizing John Walsh as an Officer to: (i) to prepare, execute, deliver and perform, as the
case may be, such agreements, amendments, applications, approvals, certificates,
communications, consents, demands, directions, documents, further assurances, instruments,
notices, orders, requests, resolutions, supplements or undertakings, (ii) to pay or cause to be
paid on behalf of the Company any related costs and expenses and (iii) to take such other
actions, in the name and on behalf of the Company, as each such officer shall deem necessary
or advisable to complete and effect the foregoing transactions or to carry out the intent and
purposes of the foregoing resolutions and the transactions contemplated thereby, the
preparation, execution, delivery and performance of any such agreements, amendments,
applications, approvals, certificates, communications, consents, demands, directions,
documents, further assurances, instruments, notices, orders, requests, resolutions,
supplements or undertakings, the payment of any such costs or expenses and the performance
of any such other acts shall be conclusive evidence of the approval of the Board thereof and all
matters relating thereto.

3. The Authorizing Resolution was (i) adopted by the Board of Directors in compliance
with the Company’s certificate of incorporation and bylaws, (ii) have not been amended,
modified, or rescinded since their adoption, and (iii) are in full force and effect as of the date
hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Secretary’s Certificate as
of February 24, 2021.

PROTERRA INC

DocuSigned by:
@o[lm Co\,«iwgfow

2AC7FE021B63499...

JoAnn C. Covington, Secretary

1815 Rollins Road, Burlingame, CA 94010 1 Whitlee Court, Greenville, SC 29607 383 Cheryl Lane, City of Industry, CA 91789

www.proterra.com
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Page 2 of 2
EXHIBIT A
(Authorizing Resolutions)
1815 Rollins Road, Burlingame, CA 94010 1 Whitlee Court, Greenville, SC 29607 383 Cheryl Lane, City of Industry, CA 91789

www.proterra.com



PROTERRA INC
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RESOLUTIONS ADOPTED FEBRUARY 24, 2021

Authorization of John Walsh

WHEREAS, John Walsh is the Senior Vice President, Sales for Proterra.
WHEREAS, in as an officer of the Company, Mr. Walsh is called upon to submit responses to

requests for proposals issued by transit agencies, and such agencies often require the Secretary of the
Company to produce resolutions of the Board confirming Mr. Walsh’s authority to respond to such
requests for proposals.

WHEREAS, Board deems it advisable, and in the best interests of the Company and its

stockholders, to confirm and ratify Mr. Walsh’s authority to act on behalf of the Company as its Senior
Vice President, Sales.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: That, as an officer of the company, Mr. Walsh
is authorized: (i) to prepare, execute, deliver and perform, as the case may be, such
agreements, amendments, applications, approvals, certificates, communications, consents,
demands, directions, documents, further assurances, instruments, notices, orders, requests,
resolutions, supplements or undertakings, (ii) to pay or cause to be paid on behalf of the
Company any related costs and expenses, and (iii) to take such other actions, in the name and
on behalf of the Company, as such officer shall deem necessary or advisable to carry out his
function as Senior Vice President, Sales for the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER: That the preparation, execution, delivery and performance of
any such agreements, amendments, applications, approvals, certificates, communications,
consents, demands, directions, documents, further assurances, instruments, notices, orders,
requests, resolutions, supplements or undertakings, the payment of any such costs or expenses
and the performance of any such other acts shall be conclusive evidence of the approval of
the Board thereof and all matters relating thereto.

RESOLVED FURTHER: That all actions heretofore taken by Mr. Walsh with respect to the
foregoing authorization and all other matters contemplated by the foregoing resolutions are
hereby approved, adopted, ratified and confirmed.





